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OUR MISSION

In striving to become a world leader in the consumer
electronics arena, we pledge to serve customers with
innovation and quality services, operate an efficient
organization to create value for all stakeholders and
honour our responsibilities as a good global corporate
citizen.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

E 3 e BUSINESS REVIEW
E RESULTS

BMEME  AEBR2008F T HEE 2 ¥4 In summary, the Group experienced mixed results in fiscal 2008.
HEZYE -PAEE  BMESEEFNER - While we recorded an increase in gross profit, the Group saw
ME A EEEB TN B89.7% i IR R FE 1 i B R a 9.7% reduction in turnover in the current year while profit
56% c REBRBIIBRMARETEZIR attributable to shareholders decreased by 56%. These results,
REEESE N o AN B m 2 IE AR H 2 Bk illustrate the rapidly changing landscape of doing business
B PREARBAE ZTES FESET in our industry. Certain challenges were out of the Group’s

EEE HEBELA FETFHEREER control: an appreciating RMB, a weakening US dollar, changing

AEEBLERRE0 BARZERE KN Chinese labour laws, increases in the price of oil, key component

EFN LI FERINNEER ZBREAEMY shortages and a general malaise in domestic US consumer

2. MRNMEEZSEARAEBKA LK T - spending. As a result of these factors the Group was caught

Fto between price commitments to customers in the first half of
the year and increasing costs and expenses incurred after those
commitments were made.

BREMZERE  SEBR N REIRE KRR To meet these challenges, Management focused on ways to cut
MM ER N ZIREBE NS HEFHUARLSEE cost and better position itself to do business in a new world
BzAXE - BEMs AEEZERREEK of increased economic pressure. Over-all, the Group’s results
PR EBEER ZIRE NREEK 2 RIE reflect our doing business in this changing environment — fairing
Al (A=)  EFEBEBENTEY 2 reasonably well (with some bright spots) while having to take
PR - 2008 F N E - BRITERI R IE measures to adapt to the challenges we face. We emerged from
BRI RMOEBIMEEREY  WEERR fiscal 2008 with a better perspective of our industry and are

FEPN2009F B I F EE S 2R HF o positioned to better compete on the world stage in fiscal 2009.
BEFLEEXEK Electronics Division

2008F 2 FE HE B ER2007F T B FE Annual sales totals in the Electronics Division in 2008 were
TE9.7% RATNEEN ¥ FEHFSAE 9.7% lower than in fiscal 2007. This decrease coincided with
BEIHE - MEETFHERN2007F & 5 8 reduced consumer spending in the United States which fell
EMREZHE R 2 BB RIER A - Eoh o NEY sharply during and after the 2007 holiday selling season despite
TFTREERE GBS EETEER T reasonably strong sales in the first half of the year. In addition, a
2. nEFERMENDNERETFTES (FIOF shortage of small TFT screen panels not only adversely affected
IZADVDI) ZHEREFTISHEIR 2 8B - the performance of the industry as a whole, it forced us to
FRERESTEYH  EERERRFEES reduce sales of small screen TFT products (such as portable DVD
HAIZELAE AN APIEDVD RS 2 855 players) to those for which we could secure panels. All the while
severe competition in the video products business continued to
make it difficult to increase sales in the opening price point DVD
category.

B—FHE ' BBRANEE ZKE QR The Singing On the other hand, sales in our karaoke and musical instruments
Machine Company, Inc. ([SMCJ) 5% 2 K4 category, through the Group’s subsidiary, The Singing Machine
OKHE R RS 2 HERL EBEREREE Company, Inc. (“SMC") increased by 27%; contrary to the
HKZIERTNIERE2I% - KEB I XY E S general downward trend in consumer spending, the Group's
KEBEMSBZIEBLER EERRELE products in this category fulfill a specialty segment of the
EARBRERZ [RERLE] - HM5—1E consumer market which has gained general acceptance in US
MEEBBLTERIMEREEREESR & households for wholesome “family entertainment”. We also
BoashsRIE o experienced strong performance in our other branded businesses
with our DisneyTM line meeting Management'’s expectations.

4 Starlight International Holdings Ltd ~ F+ [ B B2 & BR 2 &)



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

¥EEOE -8 BUSINESS REVIEW - continued

EFEEXEK-& Electronics Division — continued

BEEHEEREKE  SEEEHMRBENEE Notwithstanding these challenges the Group was able to
mEAENMEEERY SAEBEZFEEFEX forge an overall increase in annual gross profit margin due to

BLASEESRERR - LHE  BPIEHEEER Management's execution of a strategy to change product mix
EFRHNEAHETFERS - BB FIIAE and sales focus. In particular, we refocused our sales efforts to
EEREERIREHBETE - FREAD increase domestic inventory transactions. This allowed us to sell
EBHzoHEmA BRMAESB=REBRN smaller minimum order quantities at more favourable prices.
BRa] (5 BASMC » Cosmo Communications By increasing our distribution presence in the United States we
Corporation ) Starlite Consumer Electronics were able to sell directly to major retail chains through our three

(USA) Inc.) ERHEE TEETEEEE o R United States based subsidiaries: SMC, Cosmo Communications
BAeaRNEBRHEAIREE BEAELTEDR Corporation, and Starlite Consumer Electronics (USA) Inc. This

RESKEZMNEREMAEZES UIEH strategy opened new avenues for the Group to reach out to
BEZEE-BEME BETFEFZ2HEE leading retailers by providing them shorter delivery schedules and
BAED ULRERZEEREGFSHMIEHER customized quantities. As a whole the Group’s gross profit margin
NERZBREEZ DHEKLBEKARE N increased from 20% in 2007 to 24% in 2008 notwithstanding
REE 2 BEEEFEHB2007F 220%E M= weaker second half sales and increased distribution and financing
2008F 224% © costs caused by the need to carry inventory and to provide

warehousing and freight transportation.

BRZERAZERTIFF2EMNERERTE Gross profit margin in the second half of the year, however,
H - mAREHERILIEEIRE o iESl o & was well below expectations for a number of reasons — many
RERERERLFFERE Bt &M of which were beyond Management’s control. While pricing for
DA AELFRZRKAMAREEREEERE 7R products was set in the first half of the year, we were forced to
FoBETHEZEBHBELEEZERHG (BATFT absorb cost increases without being able to pass the costs on to
N REERE) 2ETETHHERBE L customers. The industry as a whole saw a sharp rise in the prices
T+ o & TR A 78 A A BE (Il 2 2 B i 52 B B2 of plastic resin and key components such as TFT small screen
Zoftsh 2RECHBM T S ESR KB A panels. Labour cost was also affected as a result of the change
007 FFEEEM - HE LD HK AR EF in China legistration. In addition surges in oil prices worldwide
hN38%  TERBANEE 2 F MK - led to a significant increase in freight and transportation costs
PREINTHTRZEBRA - BRIHMHEE & over 2007. Selling and distribution costs increased by 38% over
MEEZXHBRMSEHEAEEBHEE the previous year as did the Group’s royalty payments which
HWHOEATZE REinEt R ZEESE include fees paid to Disney. To stimulate sales, we sponsored a
- FAULR2008F M BMFE 2 ESE RN rebate program with a leading US department store chain and
24,000,000 7L - REEB B BB R F EEE expended promotional funds to promote our Disney line leading
EBHEMN NS ERIEM AN EEH to a HK$24 million increase in advertising expense in fiscal 2008.
ERS BPRVHRFERR —FTEHEERE Finance expense also grew due to increased factoring activities
AR FE - S BEAEEABEE and inventory carrying costs. We continued to carry unexpected

FEEERRERENAREEBISAB  £FK inventory balances in the last quarter of the fiscal year as a result
EERPEzAEHEmMS EEE - of weaker sales in the United States. No less significant is the

fact that manufacturing in China continued to present the Group
with many challenges caused by the rapid growth of the Chinese
economy and the steep appreciation of the Chinese RMB.

BEMSBH 28R E  NEBCDBHKAN In response to these difficult conditions the Group implemented

THILAVRIBEBE 2T KT - HPERSE cost controls to hold the line on administrative expenses and we

ZATHE AR2007FE FH L - B E KM P saw a decrease in administrative costs over 2007. Management

RETFTEREAEKE WIREEEMSIS has also taken additional steps to reduce inventory to appropriate

TS FE 2 TE A - levels and have revised our forecasts for the new fiscal year based
on current market conditions.

Annual Report 2008 4 ¥ 5



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

¥EEOE -8 BUSINESS REVIEW - continued

BHEHE Securities Trading

REBPAREE RS D EBFELEETE A6,100,000 The Group recorded a segment result of a loss of HK$6.1 million
PETT © for the year.

B2 PROSPECTS

EEEBE2009F IS BRELB -TREE Management is cautiously optimistic in its outlook for 2009. The

BEHENREEEEMASAEB R RKF full effect of Management's operational changes and strategies

EUARBRAEEFTERT LKA -HM2 should lead to more efficiency and greater performance at lower

EREER2008F 22 EBEESAER U= cost in the coming year. Our belief is based on seeing 2008's

WHNMAEL - MAANE IS ME Rl IR T S8R - operational changes to increase the Group’s efficiency while our
cost cutting measures should increase performance.

2N &5 [8 71 (] B AE E AR bt FE2008 5F 2 B AN I The Group should see the benefits from 2008's cost cutting
IR MR R Wi B EITHR measures at its Chinese manufacturing facilities as well as

BRAZAM FE2HERRMHBENERE increased efficiencies in total administration costs. The price of

BIFTHER 2 ERETEE - HMEE - +H key supplies and raw materials should stabilize including small

R ERGEEAEREARBER - screen TFT panels. We believe that the recent economic measures
taken in China should stabilize the value of the RMB.

RAOKMRLERHEF 2 ERERIFERE & Growth in karaoke and musical instruments business should
MBEERE BB TEmEER Wik increase and we will continue to build our Disney branded
EEEDAY 2R EER - BN EH N business with popular character based specialty products. We will

FEBMBARAIERBLEZ S BEESR - also be developing advanced higher margin products such as Blu-
{5l 70 BE J.DVD# o I I ER B R R IE & {E#E Ray DVD players in collaboration with Sony and its affiliates. We
W EM RS - BFEHamilton Beach@ B RE look forward to launching new product lines including Hamilton

EFEMRBEEHRANTIREIBRLES Beach branded kitchen electronics and specialty Youth Electronics
DEBEFEm  ARITHEIB3,000@ EHE AT products targeted to children between the ages of eight and

B EEMMN2008F E=F(E - thirteen in collaboration with Wal-Mart who has ordered these
products for over 3,000 stores for delivery in third quarter of
2008.

RPEE RPEESENRBANBEER We believe that our refocus on factory to retailer sales coupled
EHTERZHERE MEEEZLEW with more efficient operations will position the Group to

m B AR EERES KT BE outperform the industry and the challenges presented by
REBFARERP AL o FAPIH20094 an uncertain economic environment. Our goal for 2009,
ZEEHAREARNE N CEE  RIEN therefore, will be to deliver profitable operations and to
BREREE BREREZEEEREREIE enhance shareholders’ value. With our current Management and
BMEHAIEINZZFRR - infrastructure we expect to achieve these goals.

B AR SR FINANCIAL POSITION

RBESRMBEER Liquidity and Financial Resources

REE 2 B RRRIFRE - R200843 H31 The financial position of the Group remained stable. As at

A - RERFAREEEFESA106,000,000% 31 March 2008 cash and deposits and marketable securities

7C » mEF A A139,000,0008 7T ° amounted to HK$106 million, as compared to HK$139 million
last year.

NBRTERASERRERERTECEERARE Gearing ratio, calculated as total borrowings to shareholders’
Lt & £0.59 (20074 : 0.41) » M AFE 2R fund was 0.59 (2007: 0.41), and net bank borrowings to
TEIFEEREREE S 25 A /A0.50 (2007 shareholders’ fund was 0.50 for the year (2007: 0.30). Current
F:030) EABEEYULABAGSEL ratio calculated as current assets to current liabilities decreased
B EREFE 2158 ERFE 21.47 from 1.58 in last year to 1.47 for this year.

6 Starlight International Holdings Ltd ~ F+ [ B B2 & BR 2 &)



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

MR - & FINANCIAL POSITION - continued
HBRERERE Financing and Capital Structure
AREBTDUEZLRBITERIEALEEES - The Group finances its operations by a combination of equity

2008 3A31H  AEB ZRITAEZRY and bank borrowings. As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s total
A465,000,0007 7t (20074 : 331,000,000 borrowings of about HK$465 million (2007: HK$331 million), of

JC) & 430,000,000 AR TFERNEE - which HK$430 million are repayable within one year and HK$35
M35,000,000%& JLZBERSF RNEE million are repayable within five years.

AR ASEBRINDZISHUETHETE The Group’s transactions were mostly denominated in US dollars
mE

B AR ZEZRB T TEKX - and Hong Kong dollars. The exposure to exchange risk was
insignificant.
EEER Pledge of Assets

20083 A31H  AEEEAEEE A At 31 March 2008, the Group pledged certain assets and
133,827,000 75 (20074 : 136,058,000/ securities with carrying value of HK$133,827,000 (2007:
T ETEERBHEA—REERERK HK$136,058,000) to secure the general credit facilities and the

CREPOZER- margin accounts with brokers.
ER = Contingent Liabilities

RELE2007F3A31B I E - REEEA SMC, which was acquired by the Group during the year ended
ZSMCE—REBMEREN RGP REIIE 31 March 2007, is one of the defendants in a lawsuit relating
Wd Zz— - FE2005% 08 E AW E (B to copyright infringement. In September 2005, the defendants,

SMCHEA) ZHIBREHE - NEIBGEILIER T including SMC, filed multiple motions to dismiss the complaint
IR EEE 2 S RAER Mg ZE5F - from the publisher owners of musical compositions. In October
FE2005F 10 REMERERZMH AR Z 2005, the plaintiff filed a motion for summary judgment. In
B o 7E20065F 17 - FEHASWEEE - January 2006, the court granted the motions of the defendants
WERRES 7K BEZ RS ERMYE B and denied the motion of the plaintiff, thereby dismissing
EREER - REEBEMEELF FR - the case against the defendants with prejudice. The plaintiff
SMCZ REEHWBEL T B LK MBH thereafter appealed the decision. During the year, the claims
FAAE oA © against SMC were dismissed with prejudice and the lawsuit was
concluded.

M2007F3A318  AKEE T —RFP R As at 31 March 2007, the Group was a defendant in a lawsuit
100,000% 7T (}H %5 72770,000/8 J0) sk A 2 in the amount of US$100,000 (equivalent to HK$770,000). The
EAN e BEARGERFRTNE - case was settled during the year.

= STAFF

20083 H31H  AEEHEAF B T #3,610 As at 31 March 2008, the Group had a total staff of 3,610
AN HEF3488AZBATE  BEARAEEZ of which 3,488 were employed in the PRC for the Group's
sy HER - manufacturing and distribution business.

AEBAEETIRBEZBMWE TR - 2 The Group provides employee benefits such as staff insurance,

BiRk - BEMRE - RKGTE - BB B medical scheme retirement scheme, discretionary bonus and share
REEET 2] - RERNER L INRINEE R o option scheme and also provides in-house training programmes

and external training sponsorship.

Annual Report 2008 4 ¥ 7
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, aged 61, is the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Group. He has been in the Group for
38 years and has over 38 years of management experience in the
electronics industry.

Mr. Lau Sak Kai, Anthony, aged 58, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak
Hong, Philip, is the Group’s Director responsible for the Group’s
overall production management in China. His main duties,
besides the management of PRC production activities, include
the responsibility of local sales in China and the planning and
exploitation of new projects in China. He has been in the Group
for 36 years.

Mr. Lau Sak Yuk, Andy, aged 58, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
Philip, is also one of the Group’s Production Directors responsible
for the Group’s overall production management in China. In
addition, he is in charge of the Research & Development of the
Group. He has been in the Group for 36 years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter, aged 67, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 1988 and re-
designated as non-executive director of the Company on 28
September 2004. He has been practising as a solicitor in Hong
Kong for over 38 years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Hau Chong, Norman, aged 52, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 1998. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Exeter, and is a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 21 years of experience in
management and property development.

Mr. Chan Chak Chung, aged 50, was appointed director of the
Company since 30 September 2004. He is a qualified accountant
and has about 27 years experience in the public accountancy
profession. He holds a Master degree in Business Administration.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom.

Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck, aged 52, was appointed director of
the Company since 30 September 2004. He has been practicing
as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 26 years. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Arts from the University of Ontario, Canada. He is
also an independent non-executive director of ITC Corporation
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Yat Tung, aged 29, the eldest son of Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
Philip, joined the Group in 2003 as assistant to Chairman. He
graduated with a Bachelor of Art in Business Marketing from
Indiana University, the Kelley School of Business. Previously,
he held a marketing executive position in Storage Technology
Corp. He is now responsible for corporate relations, local sales
in China, and the integration of the ERP system to facilitate the
modernisation of the Group’s management.

Mr. Lau Yat Sun, aged 28 is the second son of Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
Philip. He graduated at Bentley College, a business specialty
college with a Bachelor of Art in Business Marketing. After
graduation, he worked for an electronics firm in Massachusetts
as a buyer for electronic components. Later on, he joined the
group in 2004 as Product Development President and established
koncepts International Ltd. (“koncepts”), a subsidiary of the
Group. He is currently responsible for the development of new
digital products for koncepts.

Ms. Lau Chui Lan, Carol, aged 59, is a sister of Mr. Lau Sak
Hong, Philip. Ms Lau rejoined the Group in October 2006 to
oversee the financial management and reporting of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the United States. Ms Lau served as financial
controller of the Group from 1986-1988 and was President of
a fully owned subsidiary of the Group in United States from
1990-1996. She has over 31 years of experience in financial
management, business consultation, financial and regulatory
auditing in Australia, Hong Kong and United States. She
graduated from Curtin University in Perth, Australia in 1975 with
a Bachelor's degree in Accounting, and held a Master degree in
computing at the Canberra University, Australia in 1980. Ms Lau
is a certified public accountant in the United States.

Mr. Lau Shek Hung, Eric, aged 52, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak
Hong, Philip, is a Director of a major subsidiary of the Group. He
is responsible for the Group’s Colour TV manufacturing business.
He has been in the Group for 12 years and has over 19 years of
experience in the electronics field.

Mr. Lau Sek Hoi, Jacky, aged 49, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak
Hong, Philip, is a Director of a major subsidiary of the Group.
He is holding a science degree from one Australian university
and is currently responsible for the Group’s material sourcing,
purchasing and control activities. He has been in the Group for
23 years.

Annual Report 2008 £ i
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT - continued

Mr. Wong Kai Wai, Tony, aged 59, joined the Group as General
Manager in 2005. He started his career in the audio and video
manufacturing business since 1967. He was formerly a director
of a television manufacturing company listed in Hong Kong. He
supervises and coordinates different divisions of the Group.

Mr. Lam Wang Tat, Thomas, aged 51, joined the Group as the
president of the Group’s Marketing Division. He has 31 years
experience as IT veteran, and his background was in software,
consulting system integration and management. He has extensive
experience in sales, marketing, management, consulting,
project management, software development and in consumer
electronic business. He was formerly a director of various major
multinational IT companies.

Mr. Chow Wing Hon, Alfred, aged 57, joined the Group in
March 2006 and is responsible for the Group’s corporate
development and overseas operations. He graduated from the
University of Hawaii in 1973 with a Bachelors degree in Business
Administration. He spent most part of his working career (21
years) with the Hong Kong Jockey Club, holding senior positions
in Internal Audit, Administration and Racing Registry.

Mr. Chan Po Chung, Norman, aged 57, joined the Group as
a Financial Controller in 1988 for supervising the Group’s
accounting, financial and corporate aspects. He is a qualified
accountant with over 23 years of auditing, commercial and
financial experience.

Mr. Anton Handal, aged 53, joined the Company as Counsel, for
matters related to United States activities in 2005 and regularly
advises the Group on legal and business matters. He joined
The Singing Machine Company, Inc, as its Chief Executive Officer
on June 21,2007. The Singing Machine Company, Inc is listed
on the American Stock Exchange (AMEX) and is engaged in the
development, distribution, marketing and sales of consumer
karaoke and musical instruments. The Singing Machine
distributes its products worldwide. He received his Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics from the University of California at
Los Angeles in 1980 and his Juris Doctorate from Southwestern
University School of Law in 1982. Mr. Handal is a member
in good standing with the State Bar of California and is also
admitted to the Bars of the United States Ninth Circuit Court of
Appeals, and the United States District Courts for the Southern
and Central and Northern Districts of California, the Federal
Circuit Court of Appeal and the Central District of Florida. He
has also served as a member of the Villa View Hospital board of
directors, and is a former member of the Board of Trustees of the
San Diego Railroad.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT - continued

Mr. Peter Horak, aged 69, was appointed Chief Executive
Officer of Cosmo in January 2001. He is the co-founder of
Cosmo Canada and has been its CEO since 1988. Mr. Horak has
extensive knowledge and experience in distribution of consumer
electronics products in Canada. Prior to joining Cosmo Canada in
1982, Mr. Horak worked with several top electronic companies
and served as Sanyo’s Vice President of Sales and Marketing.
He leads the sales team to open new markets and develop new
products and works closely with the administrative group and
warehouse supporting group.

Mr. Jeff Horak, aged 49, joined one of the Group US subsidiary
Cosmo Communications Canada Inc. as Vice President of Sales
& Marketing since 1981. He is responsible for sales, business
development of foreign markets and develops various product
lines, which Cosmo distribute.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. The Board of directors of the Company
(“the Board”) firmly believes that to maintain a good, solid
and sensible framework of corporate governance will ensure
the Company to run its business in the best interests of its
shareholders as a whole.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”)
as its own code on corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company has
complied with the Code except the following:

1. Pursuant to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer of an issuer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing. Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong is currently the chairman
and managing director of the Company. Having considered
the current business operation and the size of the Group,
the board of directors of the Company is of the view that
Mr. Lau acting as both the chairman and managing director
of the Company is acceptable and in the best interest of the
Company. The Board will review this situation periodically.

2. The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted
by private act, the Starlight International Holdings Limited
Company Act, 1989 of Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant
to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act, director holding office as
executive chairman or managing director shall not be subject
to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting as
provided in the bye-laws of the Company (“the Bye-laws”).
As the Company is bound by the provisions of the 1989
Act, the Bye-laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the
requirements of the code provision A.4.2 which stipulates
that every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, Mr. Philip
Lau Sak Hong, the chairman and managing director of
the Company will voluntarily retire from his directorship at
annual general meeting of the Company at least once every
three years in order for the Company to comply with the
Code, provided that, being eligible for re-election, he may
offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with leading the Group in a responsible
and effective manner. Each director has to carry out his/her
duties in utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the shareholders. The duties of the Board include establishing
the strategic direction of the Group, setting objectives and
monitoring the performance of the Group.

The Board has established schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision and those reserved for the
management. The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic
basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Company.

The Board of the Company consists of three executive directors,
three independent non-executive directors and one non-executive
director. Their brief biographical details are described on page 8
of the Annual Report.

The independent non-executive directors, all of whom are
independent of the management of the Company, are highly
experienced professionals coming from a diversified background.
They ensure that the Board maintains high standards of financial
and other mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate
check and balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive directors and non-
executive director has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company pursuant to which each of them is appointed for
service with the Company from 1 October 2007 to 30 September
2009. The appointment shall terminate on the earlier of (i) 30
September 2009, or (ii) the date on which the director ceases
to be director for any reasons pursuant to the bye-laws of the
Company or any other applicable laws.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

The full Board meets no less than four times a year to review the
financial and operating performance of the Group. Additional
board meetings were held when necessary. Due notice and
board papers were given to all directors prior to the meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Code. The Board
has established procedure to enable directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

There were four (4) regular Board meetings held in the financial
year ended 31 March 2008. The attendance record of each
director is shown below. All business transacted at the above
meetings are well-documented and maintained in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations.

HEEERMAERE
No. of board
EEHE Name of director meeting attended
285 5% Philip Lau Sak Hong 4
21855 Anthony Lau Sak Kai 4
21858 Andy Lau Sak Yuk 4
¥ 1EH Peter Hon Sheung Tin 4
o] 2 4 Norman Ho Hau Chong 3
BROZ fh Chan Chak Chung 4
2R Winston Calptor Chuck 2
BEEETRERS DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
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The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (“the Model Code”), as the code of
conduct regarding director’s securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2008.

In addition, the Board also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for senior management
of the Company in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its
expertise, there are two Board committees namely, the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee formed under the
Board, with each performing different functions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which is chaired by Mr. Norman Ho Hau
Chong, has been established with defined terms of reference in
alignment with the recommendations set out in “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules. Other
members are Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Chan Chak Chung.

The Audit Committee meets no less than twice a year with
the senior management and the external auditors. The role
and function of the Audit Committee include: to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
other financial reporting matters, to assure the completeness,
accuracy and fairness of the financial statement of the Group,
discuss the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
throughout the Group and most importantly, and to review all
significant business affairs managed by the executive directors
in particular on connected transactions. The Committee also
provides advice and recommendations to the Board and oversees
all matters relating to the external auditors, and it plays an
important role in monitoring and safeguarding the independence
of external auditors.

The Audit Committee met two (2) times during the financial year
ended 31 March 2008. Work undertaken by the audit committee
included:

— reviewing of the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2007 and for the six months ended 30 September
2007,

—  reviewing of the auditors’ fees and its re-appointment; and

— considering and approve the 2008 audit fees and audit
work.

The attendance record of each member is shown below. All
business transacted at the above meetings are well-documented
and maintained in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE - continued

HEERZEESERRY

No. of audit

committee

EREZEEgEHE Name of audit committee member meeting attended

o] E 4% Norman Ho Hau Chong 1

A H Peter Hon Sheung Tin 2

B fp Chan Chak Chung 2
FMEES REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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The Company which is chaired by Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin, has
been established with defined terms of reference. Other members
are Mr. Chan Chak Chung and Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck.

The Company aims to design remuneration policies that attract
and retain executive needed to run the Group successfully and
to motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst taking into account performance of the individual. The
remuneration should reflect performance, complexity and
responsibility of the individual, and the remuneration package
will be structured to include salary, bonus and share options
scheme to provide incentives to directors and senior management
to improve their individual performances.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include formulation of the remuneration policy, review and
recommending to the Board the annual remuneration policy, and
determination of the remuneration of the executive directors.

Work undertaken by the Remuneration Committee during the
year included:

—  reviewing of the remuneration policy for 2007/2008; and

—  reviewing of the remuneration of the executive directors and
the independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee meets once during the financial
year ended 31 March 2008 with the presence of Mr. Peter Hon
Sheung Tin and Mr. Chan Chak Chung.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Directors has not established a nomination
committee. According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Board has the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. In assessing nomination of new
directors, the Board will take into consideration of the nominee’s
qualification, ability and potential contributions to the Company.
There was no change of the composition of the Board during
financial year ended 31 March 2008.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration in respect of services provided by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu for the Group for the year ended 31 March
2008 are analysed as follows:

2008%3A31H

BT

31 March 2008

HK$

=B RS Audit service 2,200,000
IEAZ B AR TS Non audit service 355,000
PIERR RIS S SR RS E In respect of non-audit services, the fees paid to the Company’s
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auditors related to tax compliance and tax consulting services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
PREPARING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides the explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008, the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the applicable laws were complied with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern. The Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the Company
are disclosed in “Independent Auditor's Report”.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The system
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
safeguard its assets against unauthorized use of disposition,
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensures compliances with relevant laws and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage the risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s objectives.

During the year, the Company has initiated a project to review
the effectiveness of system of internal control including risk
management system. The report and findings has been submitted
to the Board and follow-up plan has been adopted based on
recommendations.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so
that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed
manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, various
notices, announcements and circulars. Procedure for voting by
poll has been included in circular of the Company accompanying
notice convening general meeting and has been read out by the
chairman at the general meeting.

At the 2007 annual general meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue,
including re-election of directors. The Chairman of the Board of
Directors and members of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee attended the 2007 annual general meeting to answer
questions from shareholders.

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of
corporate governance reflects the quality of the management
and the operations of the Group’s business. Good corporate
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective
allocation of resources and to protect shareholders’ interests.
The management wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice
in corporate governance and will try our best to maintain,
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the Group’s
corporate governance.
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FEERAOAEEERAQATIRHMB AR (518 The directors present their annual report and the audited

[AEE]) BE2008F3A31RILFEZFH consolidated financial statements of the Company and its

MR EZZIREMIERE ° subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2008.

FTEXEK PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
ARNEAE—IKREER AT - NABHERQF The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
CEBeEET HELREESHEEZIZE are principally engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of a

FEMMBAFEE - wide range of electronic products and securities trading.
¥EBENDE RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
HE2008F3A3MBLEE 2 AEFELEH The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 are
REISEZEFEERRK set out in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

FAE M RERIR N & R4.80% Il 2 HIAR S An interim dividend of HK4.80 cents per share amounting to
4 #£37,938,0008 T - EE FH /Q%T%m,)fi HK$37,938,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year.
B E2008F3A3MBIEFEZ RBEKE The directors resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
WEBRBAFEE 2R o dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 and propose that the

profit for the year be retained.

REWE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AEEREVERFRZEHBERIARES Details of the movements during the year in the investment
I mEMNFEI3A - properties of the Group are set out in note 13 to the

consolidated financial statements.

ME- - BERZE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AKFEE AEBAERESMBAZME - During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
M B N & £48,593,000/8 T - B @A E B equipment of HK$48,593,000 to expand its business. Details

ME- - BMELRERRNFEANZ &) MaF of the movements during the year in the property, plant
B BEREEMBRENT14R - and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B 7 SHARE CAPITAL

RAFR S KRRRIRBBHAEZSARA During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 5,165,000
A ([ B2 Ar)) B8 | #£5,165,0000% & 5+ = of its own shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERABETHLATIRETFIEBRIUATREFE éf (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors considered that, as the
EANNXG OERMEENARRZE Company’s shares were trading at a discount to the net asset
fEEEFME - AR INEITEEREm T value per share, the repurchases would increase the net asset
3,160,000 % 7 % & 8 174,776,214 1% %7 I {E value per share of the Company. The Company also issued
BUARRE - 3,160,000 new shares as a result of the exercise of share options

and 4,776,214 new shares as scrip dividends.

FRZRAEHBERENGEE P ERE WM Details of the movements during the year in the share capital are
32 set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AT 2 HDiREE DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
RIF1BIBRERGE  BRIRFHENIN » &K In addition to accumulated profits, under The Companies Act
RAIZEHBRBBIAI DK TRE - AR A 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is also available for
THRETIHBRANESBSG T E RIS distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
BHELDIE dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) FEDREBELSGELEEDH (a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
ZE® =% liabilities as they become due; or

(b) EEEZSBEEBERAME  B%81T (b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
I 10 KB40 i B 2 B F B 1R o than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.

EERAEELHERAARRAHDI IR ZFEBE In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
B E E B & #75,263,00058 T (20074 : for distribution at the balance sheet date consisted of contributed
75,263,0007% JT) & & &t & #/9,357,000% 7T surplus of HK$75,263,000 (2007: HK$75,263,000) and
(20074 : 81,683,000 1) ° accumulated profits of HK$9,357,000 (2007: HK$81,683,000).
EENREERBEN DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
RAFENBEAREBHAILLZESED The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
T of this report were:
HITES Executive directors:
2185 = Lau Sak Hong, Philip
2185 5 Lau Sak Kai, Anthony
2§58 Lau Sak Yuk, Andy
FEHITES ! Non-executive director:
¥ H Hon Sheung Tin, Peter
BIUKHITES: Independent non-executive directors:
] |2 % Ho Hau Chong, Norman
BR 2 {1 Chan Chak Chung

BE Chuck Winston Calptor

20 Starlight International Holdings Ltd ~ F+ [ B B2 & BR 2 &)
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EENEERKEN-E DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS - continued

D505 £ - TR %A R B85k A R In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 82, Messrs. Andy Lau

BART 2 ERMAES2ENAE B H 2R Sak Yuk, Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Norman Ho Hau Chong will

RBEFARSLHESGRE REEKBEEER- retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BN R AR ERFESHELEZGRLAE In addition, Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong, who is the chairman

BEHAREERER QG 1989F RN el AHER and managing director of the Company and is not subject to

EHSR HEEEBRRABERIKREBEFK the retirement by rotation pursuant to Starlight International

GLRAEEHE - WHEEET - Holdings Limited Company Act 1989, will voluntarily retire from
his directorship at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
offer himself for re-election.

BB ERZBRRBFASHIELERE None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the

FzEMNES BEEAQNFAKEWERF forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with

AIAEAEETNA M ERNBEMECETERE the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable

BRON) M &% IEZ RIS & &) - by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

BYFRITES L ZEHR B2 H E2009 Independent non-executive directors have been appointed for a
FORA3R RIKBAAAIMAARESRA term of two years until 30 September 2009 and are subject to
EERE - retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

BEAANNEZLBERS DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

RAFERN: BHFRELE ARAEER During the year, Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a substantial

B AAEBZz —BIFLMHEEESKE shareholder of the Company, has provided a personal guarantee

Z R B R A E A P& {R %8 #15,000,0007% T to indemnify the Group for any impairment of an unlisted

(20074 : 15,000,000 7T) ° available-for-sale investment to the extent of HK$15 million
(2007: HK$15 million).

Br PR B E N RAFABARFEEEM Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
HER ARFIHEWB AR L REEME the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
EITVEZAAMERSERIMEHES a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
BBARME o subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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BEECRESRER DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
B £2008F3A31H  QIREZESH K HAE K As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the
Bl (T35 R AE A ]) BXVEPET7 R8N B2 directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
REBNEARARNARBRA(BIEREZS R underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
HEKflzEE  MMFEERE AFERE associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
HIOKE)  H(b)IRIEE S K E KM 5352 Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required (a)
RAT SR AR AR Z K6 M &z & & to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
o SR EBES EmAA (T EmR to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
B )2 EFRARIEZETESR S HIZAEST or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
B ([ZXEsF B ]) BT EMAR A MBERZFT - under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section
KRB ZEFTREBTHAERARQ T KB 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
ZNAI(EERBLRBEERGEXVE) 2 1’& or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
D BERNORESR 2ERZEAENT - by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

BRREAEDHL
RE/ %R BREE Approximate
Long position/ E227) Number of percentage of
ESpE Name of director short position Capacity shares held shareholding
BITES: Executive directors:
255 Lau Sak Hong, Philip ) EREAA 91,583,029 11.59%
Long position Beneficial owner
BEBERARZER 3,165,277 0.40%
(friza)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note a)
BERERARZ#a 10,100,415 1.28%
(Hizzb)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note b)
ERERBE (Wit 169,069,209 21.39%
Held by trust (note c)
273,917,930 34.66%
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BEE RS REE-E& DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued
BRI
RE/HA BREAE Approximate
Long position/ 54 Number of percentage of
EEpE Name of director short position Capacity shares held shareholding
BTES: Executive directors:
- & - continued
el Lau Sak Kai, Anthony =Y BRBAA 37,976,336 4.80%
Long position Beneficial owner
BEWERARZ#R 3,165,277 0.40%
(frita)

Interest of controlled
corporation (note a)

BAWIER AR 2 ER 10,100,415 1.28%
(Bi5th)

Interest of controlled
corporation (note b)

51,242,028 6.48%

A58 Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 9] EREAA 35,827,445 4.53%
Long position Beneficial owner

BAEBERAR B 3,165,277 0.40%
(7ita)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note a)

BERERA R #a 10,100,415 1.28%
(Bitb)
Interest of controlled
corporation (note b)

49,093,137 6.21%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES - continued

BRENE D
RE/ %R BREAE Approximate
Long position/ 54 Number of percentage of
EEnE Name of director short position Capacity shares held shareholding
FHTES : Non-executive
director:
#iHA Hon Sheung Tin, Peter 3-) ExEBA 206,769 0.03%
Long position Beneficial owner
BAFHTES:  Independent non-executive
director:
FEE Chuck Winston Calptor ) BEEHAA 770,000 0.10%
Long position Beneficial owner
oz Notes:

ZERMEBHRBGE - 2HHEREHG
BOEREMRXEKEEHIARKRE]D 2
A EHXBEA 2 A KK Nominees Limited
=

(a)

ZEBRONDEBARAIRRE2EERE
B Z A F]Wincard Management Services
Limited 5 ©

ZERNBE —2RETESEREAZR
A]Philip Lau Holding Corporation & % 8 [&
BE2EERRE ZEEERESZEH
ABIERHREREBEAL -

BEXFIHEERFEESEUAARAQFHEN
BRARIZIAINDEFENBARZE TRIE
AR 5N - 20083 A31H I R B EME
EREBTHRABERARAREBERR (F
ERBLERBEGEMNEXVE) 2% - HE
PR EHFFERREES RPEEHEXV
HINSDHRTEBMNEARRNA KB %K
AR AR AIRIEES KB EKH F352
BEFHEEZ2ECMKREEZETAAMS
RAR KRB R ATz s o

in the

These shares are held by K.K. Nominees Limited, a company which
is wholly and beneficially owned by Lau Sak Hong, Philip, Lau Sak
Kai, Anthony and Lau Sak Yuk, Andy (hereinafter collectively with
other family members referred to as the “Lau’s family”).

These shares are held by Wincard Management Services Limited,
a company which is wholly and beneficially owned by the Lau’s
family.

These shares are wholly and beneficially owned directly or
indirectly by Philip Lau Holding Corporation, a company
beneficially owned by a discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects of which include Lau Sak Hong, Philip and his associates.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares
in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at 31 March 2008, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company

or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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BERRRE SHARE OPTIONS
ARE ZBRE Share options of the Company
NAGER2002F9 A 12H BT 2 R EKF R K The Company has a share option scheme which was approved
grapaRAAMSF BRESE ([ E5 and adopted at the special general meeting of the Company
Z)  TEEMNENEE REERMEEHAK held on 12 September 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) for a period of
SEEHZER - T2EZEFEALTEE 5 years. The primary purpose is to provide incentives or rewards
,%I FENITES  ARARBEER - & to participants for their contribution to the Group. Eligible
CRASERAREBRNFIRE - participants of the Old Scheme included any employees, non-
executive directors, suppliers of goods or services, customers,
advisors or consultants and shareholders of any member of the

Group.
BiEEHS 2R B EETEma s The maximum number of share options which might be issued
TZEReBRHhEE  T15 ﬁ_ﬂa%ﬁfﬁﬂxf upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Old Scheme
10% @ MEEDXE NAITEERERD must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue while
ETAEBATREETRG Z230% ° overall limit for all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised should not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time
to time.

RERERHZBMI12EARN - F28E (£ The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise

ERE BIUSRNTEENESSH2HBE of the option granted to each participant (except substantial

ALTBRIN ITEEBREmMEIT G TEIT 2R shareholder, independent non-executive director, or their

MDA BB EREETIRAZ1% - respective associates) in any 12 month period up to the date of
the grant should not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

BREATFERARBESEEATE  ETATR The period within which the shares should be taken up under an

% A FBBSE - EIF AT REIREER option was any period as determined by the Board, which should

P {A] 05 R 77 150 P AR A not be more than 5 years from the date on which the option was
granted. The option might be exercised by the grantee at any
time during the option period.

i Hﬁﬁzwﬁﬁ{“ﬁ&%%%/}&m HHEER The subscription price of the share options was determined
THEEBOARTERESH Rzl m by the Board, but would be no less than the highest of (i) the
B (iNVFE B8R EESERZ S AR FHk closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the average of
TE: (iR ELHARCEEAESE the closing price of the shares of the 5 trading days immediately
e preceding the offer date; or (iii) the nominal value of the shares
on the offer date.

REEREI2RERIET  ZeEEAMIE The consideration for the grant was HK$1 and it would in no
T TARIE - circumstance be refundable.
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BB - & SHARE OPTIONS - continued

APpalzBlRE-& Share options of the Company - continued

B2 D M2007F9RB11BER E% > B The Old Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and thereafter,
T BIBETERHERE - SRIBBEETE no more option could be granted pursuant to the Old Scheme.
EREEcERENS BBEEXBEBIRE In respect of the options already granted under the Old Scheme,
B REBEFEER TAEEETREEZE the provisions shall remain in force. The movements during the
BRERRFERNZEBBERWET : year of the share options granted to certain employees of the

Group pursuant to the Old Scheme were as follows:

BREHE
Number of share options
#2007 20085
4418 3A31H
5 RAT6E REFERITE e RATE
IEE Outstanding Exercised Outstanding
BFHH Exercise as at during as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2007 the year 31.3.2008
BIT
HK$
10.10.2003 0.86 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
2.11.2004 0.814 2,500,000 (2,000,000) 500,000
5.1.2006 0.89 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
16.8.2006 1.15 500,000 (500,000) -
13.11.2006 1.45 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
4.1.2007 1.66 820,000 (600,000) 220,000
1.2.2007 1.72 100,000 (60,000) 40,000
7.3.2007 1.93 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
23,920,000 (3,160,000) 20,760,000

REENRBEEE  ARa2BELER No share options were granted pursuant to the Old Scheme
o during the year.
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BRE-& SHARE OPTIONS - continued

FRRIZBERE - & Share options of the Company - continued

Htat - Notes:

(a) DA ERERE AR IR H RS AT - (a) The above options were granted for an exercise period of five

years from the date of grant of the options.

(b) IR AF N A B AR A AR A S BUE o (b) No option was lapsed or cancelled during the year.
(c) RTEEREE R ZAH - MEFHIK () The weighted average closing price per share immediately before
MERER1.05%T - the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$1.05.

N RF2008F 1 B15H 8297 2 lRE A K A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was approved
GLBBEARIOF 2 BRESE ([ and adopted at the special general meeting of the Company
FHED - TZEBEMERKB2HEEZAER held on 15 January 2008 for a period of 10 years. The primary
HELEBEEFEEMRSIHAERAASS purpose is to recognise the contribution of participants and to
EEBECANER #Fit8lcaER2EE recruit and retain high calibre employees and attract human
ERAKEZ2BEE (BRES  THHT resources that are valuable to the Group. Eligible participants
SIERITRARBLIIEB L) - HER - & of the New Scheme included any full time employees (including
A RIE KB o directors, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not), suppliers, consultants, agents and advisors
of the Group.

BEFRFZMBFLE 2 EREETE M s The maximum number of shares options which may be issued
BIZESRMES  TNE5HBEFT 25N upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme
R2008F 1 ASHEMB B 22317 H 2 must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue at
10% - MEE XL KA 176 I8 AR AR ) 2 the adoption date of the New Scheme on 15 January 2008 while

BRI T2 EITRN Z230% o overall limit for all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time
to time.

REREREZABMN2EAAN 285 The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
FEKEMBTEE FRITZROAETA] of the option granted to each participant in any 12 months
BEERNEBITRAZ1% @ BRIEETIEMHE period up to the date of the grant shall not exceed 1% of the
R o shares in issue unless certain conditions are fulfilled.

=

BB ITHEHERAESRAT AR The period within which the shares must be taken up under an
BHBRTBIBI0TE o &IFE AR E option is any period as determined by the Board, which shall
PR A A f] B 61 77 160 B A 42 - not be more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
granted. The option may be exercised by the grantee at any time

during the option period.

EREZRAEEHESTRRAT EEBEER The subscription price of the share options is determined by the
THBEBONETEREZR  BRHozkm Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
& (iR BHaEESER 5 H G T of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing

E: FiiNROREEBBHZHEENAES price of shares on the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
T8 o offer date; or (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the offer
date.
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BRE -5 SHARE OPTIONS - continued
RHEREAREBAIEBTL  ZeEETMAIB The consideration for the grant is HK$1 and it will in no
MT AT RE - circumstance be refundable.

BEFFIEETAERS TEE 2ERE The movements of the share options granted to certain

SEBERAT employees of the Group pursuant to the New Scheme were as
follows:

FREREE

R2008F3A31H

i RITHEZ

BREZE

Number of

share options
granted during

TEE the year and
RHEBAH Exercise outstanding
Date of grant price as at 31.3.2008
BT
HKS$
23.1.2008 1.042 150,000
28.1.2008 0.96 346,000
496,000

RAEERN - WEREBEFTSRDERETR No share options were granted to the directors of the Company

NAEIESE - pursuant to the New Scheme during the year.
Haz Notes:
(a) LA BRI BB 10F RTTHE - (a) The above options were granted for an exercise period of ten

years from the date of grant of the options.

(b) 7R [ NI 5 B AR A K B o (b) No option was lapsed or cancelled during the year.

(c) ZFER2008F 1 A23 0 ERRER T B 2 A1 () The closing price per share immediately before 23 January 2008,
B WKHERER0.84ETT - the date on which the options were granted, was HK$0.84.

(d) ZEA2008F 1 A28 H R AR H Z A1 (d) The closing price per share immediately before 28 January 2008,
B WHERER0.I7ET - the date on which the options were granted, was HK$0.97.
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BB - & SHARE OPTIONS - continued

The Singing Machine Company, Inc. Share options of The Singing Machine Company, Inc. (“SMC"), a
([SMC]» AR A BE54.07%EE 2B A 54.07% owned subsidiary of the Company.

al) Z AR -

SMCHERR R Bl 2 FE B BN R A MR E W Particulars of the share option scheme of SMC are set out in note

F¥33° 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
BESMCEAEEEFAERE TREREZER The movements of the share options granted to certain
o EEEI WM employees of the Group pursuant to the SMC Scheme were as
follows:
BREHE
Number of share options
2007 F #2008 F
481H 3A31H
o RATHE FRERS FRBITE FARERK e R ATE
THEE Outstanding Granted Execised Forfeited  Outstanding
R A Exercise as at during during during as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2007 the year the year the year 31.3.2008
2000F9A5H 2.04 43,650 - - (7,500) 36,150
5 September 2000
2002F9 A 11H 11.09 30,000 - - - 30,000
11 September 2002
2002%12H31H 9.00 90,140 - - (1,000) 89,140
31 December 2002
2003F3A7H 5.60 30,000 - - - 30,000
7 March 2003
2003F4 A 18H 7.20 10,000 - - - 10,000
18 April 2003
2003412 A19H 1.97 39,600 - - (4,060) 35,540
19 December 2003
2004F2A6H 1.54 46,500 - - - 46,500
6 February 2004
200493 A 29H 1.20 20,000 - - - 20,000
29 March 2004
200454 A26H 1.05 12,000 - - - 12,000
26 April 2004
20045118298 0.75 60,000 - - - 60,000
29 November 2004
200412 A1H 0.77 40,000 - - (20,000) 20,000
1 December 2004
2005%5H9H 0.60 207,000 - - (25,000) 182,000
9 May 2005
2005F6 A6H 0.76 30,000 - - - 30,000
6 June 2005
2006 1A 20H 0.34 30,000 - - - 30,000
20 January 2006
20062 A1H 0.32 30,000 - (30,000) - -
1 Februry 2006
20063 A31H 0.32 80,000 - - - 80,000
31 March 2006
2006F4 B 10H 0.33 484,000 - (117,515) (30,000) 336,485
10 April 2006
200743 A31H 0.93 100,000 - - (20,000) 80,000
31 March 2007
20083 A31H 0.45 - 120,000 - - 120,000

31 March 2008

1,382,890 120,000 (147,515) (107,560) 1,247,815
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BEROIEFZZH ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Br EXH T 2 BRI 0 AR R sk E AR Other than share option holdings disclosed above, at no time
BRAAIRAFEANBERE TR ZH  FXK during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
NAESREENRBEARD R HEMEMRZEA a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the

R kESFMESH = - Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

FERE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

M2008E3HA31H - M AT (BR LiiiEESR As at 31 March 2008, the following person, other than the
BEEME RSN EERATRG RIEE interest disclosed above in respect of the directors, had interest in
BhBE 2RI LR ERS YEeMme 5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
RARREBHERANRRIEEFMBEGRDE have been notified to the Company and recorded in the register
XVELE336IE M EMBREZTER R R KX of substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions

KB BERMA required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:
BREERERGOGHA HERITRA
Number of ZHEIDH
1% ordinary shares in % of total
#E Name Capacity which interested issued shares
FTHE Lee Yu Chiang Ez=#A A 42,140,878 5.33%
Beneficial owner
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft ~ Ez#EA A 86,681,000 10.97%

Beneficial owner

it R EEFE 2 BEREZRE] R ENN - B Save as mentioned above and in the section headed “Directors’
2008%E3H31H ' RAFREB(EANLEAEER Interests in Securities”, as at 31 March 2008, the register
Y E3361EB THFE 2SR - Wik maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
Hih A EFEARR T 2 XD B (F o] #E 25 3K recorded no other interests or short positions in shares of the
KA o Company.
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BE - HERBEO LT HES PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
AREER NRBFEEZFTER ARG K5 During the year, the Company repurchased its shares on the
HBWT Stock Exchange as follows:
BESR0.40/8 T
BREOEE BRER
Number of shares Price per share Wz
of HK$0.40 each BIKE BE=E Aggregate
B# Month repurchased Lowest Highest consideration
BT BT FHT
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
20074F10H October 2007 2,222,500 1.42 1.54 3,371
200711 H November 2007 2,942,500 1.43 1.52 4,333
5,165,000 7,704
ZEBORME 2MEHE  MARAEEHTT The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and

A 2 EHAEMAERE - BERODOEER accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was reduced

BEERHEMNFNER - MABZRFHERN by the nominal value of these shares. The premium on repurchase

1B B A R 5 a F) 6 8 1 AR N8 Bl G - was charged against accumulated profits. An amount equivalent
to the nominal value of the shares cancelled was transferred from
accumulated profits to the capital redemption reserve.

AABlzMBARWEEE  HEXELE None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

AARABIEMES - any of the Company’s listed securities.
ROEBEEERE PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

REREEE AN EEELEEERELENM There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Rl RARZRABIMANESBELEER Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against such rights

REZ A5 - under the laws in Bermuda.

FTEFFHEMER MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
REBZRANEBSHRAZEE 2 HESHEED The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
RGN B G A & S HR%E22.98% [262.98% © and five largest customers accounted for 22.98% and 62.98%

respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

rEESARBERAMHER ZBEE S G The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest
REBEFANBEEEE49% KX19.5% © supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 4.9% and
19.5% respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

EENHBAB A LTREMRERE EEEMNG None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which

BARRBIBMAZNS%) EAARE MEER to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the

PR AR o Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.
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¥ B B R EMOLUMENT POLICY
AREBEEZHFMNBERDEREE 2K - The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
ERERGEH - BEE2HMEehTFHNEEERR is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The

RARzEERE  ERlEERBERALLT emoluments of the directors are reviewed by the Remuneration

SYBRMNEE SEANESKEFEABHE Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,

ATAERESERELHEET AT HM - individual performance and comparable market statistics. No
director or any of his associates, and executive is involved in
dealing his own remuneration.

ARG DEMN—EHERESEEAHSEE R The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive

EEWRB T ZHE  Zit2lFBrNEgEEeH to directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set
TS 5E33 © out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
FEZBIRIAE ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
AARICEESBIYIFENTEERE TR The Company has received the annual confirmation of
A3 13EMBEL I FEBLERE - XA independence from each of the independent non-executive
RIREMBBELIENTESTIRBILAL directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The

Company considered all independent non-executive directors to
be independent.

TEARERE SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

BEARBFIREZ A ARAERREZESMA Based on the information that is publicly available to the

B ARABREE2008FE3A31BIEFER Company, and within the knowledge of the directors, the

—HAEF FTMRARETDPRARF D 2T Company has maintained a sufficient public float not less 25%

fR1D25% < TR RBIFRE © of Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2008.

¥ B Em AUDITOR
EREEEH e WER T EHAITAARRR A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of

Bz REEBREBERZRFEREFEAX the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

gLEE - the auditor of the Company.
EEER® On behalf of the Board
*E Lau Sak Hong, Philip

EE )5 CHAIRMAN

BB Hong Kong

20087 H22H 22 July 2008
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Deloitte.
=2

F Starlight International Holdings Limited TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

(FAEEBRER2E) STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(REFZZAMA Z 2 BRLA]) (incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
ZERR

REZEMITE TR BEZINENRFEIBEESE We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
126EAREBEIBRBRAR(ERQFL) REM Starlight International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
BRAR(HBIEEE]) NEEHBHRE -« it subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
A BIRE BEN2008F3A31H 24546 pages 35 to 126, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
BEAER LEZZBIEFEZHEA1ER as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated income statement,

X HEBEREHREGEEAHERER N consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
REZGHBERE REAM TR - cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

EENGAOVMBREERENSTT DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ERAIVESHBERBAEASHMAEH The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
BB BEREERRBEBCRBED) 4R and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
HREETMAFPHMINRZSEGEETBRE - statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
EEMTERE: R EaLagERERRENLE Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
BENFMT R A TSRS AR AR EE Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Bl AFELERERENTFERDERFEE Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,

MMEHMNEARERRL  BENEREE implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
VE2HEBR MERBERTEEAEN S E preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
=t financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

BREMNEE AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
KITHEARRBREBERTNEZERE VB ®H Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
SEHER  WERBEFRE(RTE) F0K financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
EMEBRERSE - R - RITHHRE solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of The
ELAEEMAS  c AT T2 AREE Companies Act of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
MAR HERMEMATERERREELZZER not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
T ATERBEEBSHMACSEMNE S person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
AT EAEITEZ - EEERERKAITEST in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
BEEE WHRBIRHTER UAERET the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
W EHREVBERERE N FEEMERER standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
PR 3t © plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

7 2% W R

ZEMNEE -8 AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY - continued
BERSRAITREFANERGRAGES TSRS An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
FIEcBAEEERNEZRE - IEEN evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
R EURAZ BN H - BT S E R financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
FERMEBRE Y ERETEEKNSE auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
SRR AR o R EZE R - X A material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
EREZARIGRENBEEHERNFHIIBRES whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
R ERBANANIIES - LR EENE the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
ZIEFr 0 B0 IE A ¥ A A /Y A E6 BS ¥ /) B EE preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
BRER BERNBEFEEEMEANE financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
TR EEEMIERHN S HEAEIE are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
M ARTEEEBERENEEEYEH T - expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

RITHEE  KTTHESHNEZRERRTEMN We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

WM ANTHEZS BRI ER - and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
= OPINION
AKITRE FEAUNBEHREVEEMAF R In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true

H EaAE HH5EEMN2008F3H318H and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
Bk BEEEHEZZBIEFENGZT 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year

FBEERE WOKBREAVEREENRL then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

EBC(RAIEINDN IR BEERZ ERE - Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BE e FAERS AT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

HEEIAD Certified Public Accountants

BB Hong Kong

20087 H22H 22 July 2008
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CON SOUDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 4311 [LF&

2008 2007
M= FET FAT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
EEE Turnover 5 2,199,033 2,434,241
SHE KR Cost of sales (1,666,311) (1,951,018)
EF Gross profit 532,722 483,223
H i A Other income 6 22,194 25,709
2 AR Distribution costs (295,479) (213,620)
THEA Administrative expenses (168,461) (170,154)
wEWMEZ ATEE Increase in fair value of investment
0 properties 13 27,531 3,322
TZTE BTHEZ Increase in fair value of derivative
ANFEEE financial instruments 2,599 3,576
B BEAFET AERE (Decrease) increase in fair
ZEMBELZRAT value of financial assets
EE Ofd) & designated at fair value
through profit or loss (2,167) 1,120
BIEEBZREZRTF (Decrease) increase in fair value of
Bl Ofd) & investments held for trading (7,976) 1,949
ERERAHELERE Impairment loss recognised in
ZRIEEE respect of available-for-sale investments = (150)
AR VEH EHTE LA Gain on deemed partial disposal
Bt ez 2 m A of a subsidiary 37 279 10,194
HEWB QT ZEH Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 38 = 99
BE R AR Finance costs 7 (47,590) (26,975)
FEAG X A A Share of profits of associates 373 1,613
B 58 B A Profit before taxation 8 64,025 119,906
I8 Taxation 10 (18,531) (9,715)
AR A Profit for the year 45,494 110,191
THIALE( Attributable to:
AAFRE Shareholders of the Company 45,914 105,196
DY RS Minority interests (420) 4,995
45,494 110,191
FRABHERD K Dividends recognised as distribution
ZIRE during the year
—2008FHHAMK B Z A% — Interim dividend for 2008 of
487811l (2007¢ : HK4.8 cents (2007: HK4.5 cents)
4.57%4) per share 37,938 34,466
—2007 FE R HA BB — Final dividend for 2007 of
3.5/l (20074 : HK3.5 cents
20065 REARR B (2007: final dividend for 2006 of
3711l) HK3 cents) per share 27,677 22,735
65,615 57,201
EE AR EERTEW Proposed final dividend of nil
(20074 : 3.5%(l) per share (2007: HK3.5 cents) 11 - 27,677
(1T pox ]
HK cents HK cents
BikAF Earnings per share 12
— &K — Basic 5.81 13.8
—¥E — Diluted 5.75 13.5
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 31 March 2008 7200843 A31H

2008 2007
= THT TFHTT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
EMBEE Non-current assets
KEWFE Investment properties 13 108,652 81,121
M - BREKEE Property, plant and equipment 14 298,575 305,842
AR EKIE Prepaid lease payments 15 65,062 4,136
B m B R Product development costs 16 607 954
GES Goodwill 17 27,671 25,494
JE(GES &N A s Interest in associates 19 8,573 8,200
AIEHE 2 RE Available-for-sale investments 20 24,052 24,075
RIEFIH & B Deferred tax assets 31 7,542 1,263
KT mERE S Deposit for acquisition of land
use rights - 14,711
540,734 465,796
MENEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 543,606 451,244
FEUERIE « EE RTER Debtors, deposits and
KIE prepayments 23 269,025 343,704
RS HERIE Prepaid lease payments 15 1,386 121
JE WS B85 A L BRFK Amounts due from related parties 24 = 17,196
JFE LS B = 2 =) BR 18 Amounts due from associates 25 3,989 3,989
A Ug B #5518 Taxation recoverable 9,852 11,659
FEEEZRE Investments held for trading 26 20,381 25,613
PTESMT A Derivative financial
instruments 21 120 480
8 Az A FE Financial assets designated
FFAEEZ at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 21 8,149 20,795
RITEGFE MRS Bank balances and cash 27 77,068 92,401
933,576 967,202
mBEE Current liabilities
JEBRIE N BT & A Creditors and accrued charges 28 176,212 273,829
AN NG ] Amount due to an associate 25 2,809 2,809
TESMT A Derivative financial instruments 21 518 438
FEfIFHIR Taxation payable 16,603 4,752
1FERNBNBPZER Borrowings — due within one year ~ 29 430,160 329,515
RITES Bank overdrafts 30 8,171 1,722
634,473 613,065
mEBEEFE Net current assets 299,103 354,137
WEERRSARE Total assets less current liabilities 839,837 819,933
ERBIEE Non-current liabilities
BETRIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 31 5,171 7,583
MIEREIE 2 B3R Borrowings — due after one year 29 34,890 =
40,061 7,583
BEAE Net Assets 799,776 812,350
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

A EE R

At 31 March 2008 7200843 A31H

2008 2007
B & FERT FAT
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
A& A K A Capital and reserves
%N Share capital 32 316,151 315,043
fE Reserves 465,588 482,074
NN R e ey Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 781,739 797,117
EHlRB AR Share option reserve of
RE AR (e a listed subsidiary 253 66
VAR R Minority interests 17,784 15,167
R Total equity 799,776 812,350

FICEEBI6EFH A BRE - & The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 126 were
MR2008F7A22HHEE = B & REET approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

ZECUATINEEREES 22 July 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:
247 = 2878
Lau Sak Hong, Philip Lau Sak Kai, Anthony
FEFEFLETE EE
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Ak e o 0 B R

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #:Z200843 A31H L4

KAFRR ]

gz EhRE  WEOEZ
BE EfRR i Rty BRERR
EfigR Other ERRRE ARG attributableto  Share option o8
Bk BREE  AREE  BEEE  hetment  popey  EEHE Share Gpital ~ EirkAl  shareholders eene  RREE
Share Share Merger — Goodwil  revaluation  revaluation  Translation option~ redemption  Accumulated ofte  ofalisted  Minority it
apitl  premium Teserve Teserve Teserve reserve Teserve reserve Teserve profits ~ Company  subsidiary interests Total

T TR fan tAn TAr TR TR TRn TAn fAn TAr TR TR TEm
HROOOO RSO0 HKEOO0 BRSO HKSOD RKSODD  RKSOOO RSO0 HKEOD RSO0 HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSODD HKSO0D

R00GE4A1A At 1 April 2006 304,352 84,187 31138 (3,689) () 2001 12,008 339 50303 51313 mm = 1517 T186%

TREERENTE  Deceaseinfairvalueof

0 aalable-forsae
nvstrents - - - - (24) - - - - - () - - 4)
FEBISHAEL.  bchange diference aisng
EiZE on tranlaionof foreign
aperations - - - - - - (2480) - - - (2480 - 818 (1,664)

WARZHZFEE et income and expense

flur sy recognised direct in equity - - - - () - (28 - - - (2,506) - 818 (1,688)
REREA Prftforthe year - - - - - - - - - % 1051% - 49 110191
FERBEARAR  Toalecognised ncome

i and expense for the year - - - - (4) - (248 - - 105,19 102,690 - 5813 108503
304392 8,187 37138 3,688) (59) 2000 9726 339 50,303 342509 829,867 - 130 8371197
NEHBRRER Acquiston o addtona

B Inefestn & subsidry - - - - - - - - - - - - 53 531
BRI ERE Capitalcontribution from

& minotyshareholders of

asUbsidary - - - - - - - - - - - - 20499 20499
HEAHENBDT  Deemed paril disposal ofa

s subsidary - - - - - - - - - - - SN (A B (1
BANEREENRR  Reconition of equityseted

BUPAE Shareased payments - - - - - - - 2500 - - 250 6 - 1566
RRERELT fsue of shaes upon evercie

b} of share options 1,174 16,06 - - - - - 1) - - 2653 = = 26153
EERR Reputchese of hares (148 - - - - - - - 1483 (430 (4300 - - (4300
it Dividends pid - - - - - - - - - B A - - G
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A% BE g A B 2

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #;Z200843 A31H I F &

FAERR i}

L EhRE  WEOEZ
RE EhGR it Ruty  BRERE
EfigR Other ERRRE ARG attributableto  Share option o8
B&  BBEE  ABER  BEEE  hetment  popety  HEEE Shae Gl EHRA chareholders  reene  REER
Share Share Merger — Goodwil  revaluation  revaluation  Translation option~ redemption  Accumulated ofte  ofalisted  Minority it
apitl  premium resene  resee resene reene feene fesee resene pofts — Company  subsidlary  interests Total

ST 7 fan tAn TAr TR TR Thm tan  tAn TR TR TR TEm
HROOOO RSO0 RKEOO0 BRSO HKSOD RKSODD RSO0 RSO0 HKROD RSO0 HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSODD  HKSO0D

R007£3A318 At31 March 2007 31508 100393 31138 (3,688) (39) 2001 97126 3765 51,786 281,006 91,17 6 15,167 81235

AEEREATE  Decessein fairvalieof

) aalable-forsae
investments - - - - &} - - - - - 3 - - )
FEBIFRAEE.  Echange difeence
EiZE arising on ransation
of foreign operations - - - - - - (147) - - - (147) - 513 366

WARZHZFEE  Netincome and expense
tEaziEl recognised drectly

in equty - - - - B - (147) - - - (170) - 513 3
TEFET Profit forthe year - - - - - - - - - 45914 45914 - (420) 45,494
TERSEANR  Toalecognised ncome
i and expense for the year - - - - ] - (147) - - 5914 0,144 - % 85837
315,08 100393 31138 (3.688) ) 2000 9579 3765 51,786 32690 842,861 66 15,260 858,187
JEhEATEN Acquisition of addtional
i interest n & subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 218 218
BRI R Capital contriution from
i minortyshareholders of
a sbsdiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 626 626
Deemed partal disposal
of a Subsidary - - - - - - - - - - - - (285) 265)
TINEREENRE  Reconiton of equitysetfled
SUPAIES share-hased payments - - - - - - - 125 - - 125 187 - kil
RikERELT fsue of shaes upon evercie
bl of shae options 1264 2376 - - - - - (33) - - 3308 - - 30
EORBERNRRS  lsueof shasas o
dvidend 1910 6,859 - - - - - - - (8.769) - - - -
BERh Repurchase of shares (2,066) - - - - - - - 2,066 (7,704) 1704) - - 1704)
EfffR& Dividends pad - - - - - - - - - beye (o) - - e
R008E3731A At 31 March 2008 316,151 109,628 31138 (3,688) &) 2007 9579 3553 53852 253,601 781,739 153 17784 199,776
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

i Bl i B R

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #;Z200843 A31H -4

40

2008 2007
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEEZES Cash flows from operating activities
B 5% Bl Al Profit before taxation 64,025 119,906
A Adjustments for:
JE (B 2 B A Share of profits of associates (373) (1,613)
= on B R B AN 65 Amortisation of product development costs 347 346
B ETEE E IR Release of prepaid lease payments 1,070 121
M - BB MRS Depreciation of property,
e plant and equipment 55,198 52,542
BEYENTEEL M Increase in fair value of investment properties
(27,531) (3,322)
BHEEEREZATE Decrease (increase) in fair value of investments
A (38 0) held for trading 7,976 (1,949)
PTESMTAZAYE Increase in fair value of derivative financial
30 instruments (2,599) (3,576)
B REATEF AR Decrease (increase) in fair value of of financial assets
ZEMBEELZATE designated at fair value through profit or loss
A (32 H0) 2,167 (1,120)
BIEEBEREZRKRE Dividend income from investments
g held for trading (1,434) (1,091)
EERMDELAES Brokerage expenses on redemption of shares 44 23
AR 2 IR0 5k Share-based payments 312 2,566
RITREMERFE Interest on bank and other borrowings 47,590 26,975
FBUA Interest income (4,342) (1,468)
ERERAHHERE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
ZBEBE available-for-sale investments = 150
Al E YIS 2 R E Impairment loss on properties for sale
Bi1E - 356
HEME - BERERE (Gain) loss on disposal of property,
2 (Wz) B8 plant and equipment (10) 155
BRERFBIH T ERE Net allowance for obsolete and
gl slow-moving inventories 1,648 4,057
RAREE Allowance for doubtful debts 5,961 4,489
WAR 7 EHT B A7) Gain on deemed partial disposal of
HB 10 HE a2 g ) a subsidiary (279) (10,194)
& B A R 2 s T Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = (99)
SE AR RERE X Effect of foreign exchange rate change
B TE on inter-company balances 353 (1,700)
LIEEARBEP] 2 L E Operating cash flows before movement

EEBRERA in working capital 150,123 185,554
FE®EM Increase in inventories (94,010) (66,788)
FEUARSK « #&E RIEN Decrease (increase) in debtors,

FRIE R > (38 00) deposits and prepayments 68,718 (41,358)
JE Uit 2 R | BR TE 1 1 Increase in amounts due from associates = (1,049)
EEBEIRE (120) md (Increase) decrease in investments held for trading (2,744) 4,103
TESRIT AR Decrease in derivative financial instruments 3,039 3,080
EEARAFETAER Decrease (increase) in financial assets designated at fair

ZEBMEE CRL)Em value through profit or loss 10,479 (15,016)
FERIBR R FEET B R Decrease in creditors and accrued charges (97,617) (12,054)
BEEEZRS Cash generated from operations 37,988 56,472
BEEBRE 2RBEWMA Dividend income from investments held for trading 1,434 1,091
BBFEZ AT Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (10,165) (8,961)
H b b [ F 18 7 Taxation in other jurisdictions paid (6,239) (9,744)
EL b b [ 74 TE 3R (0] Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded 2,840 385
KE XS 2R 558 Net cash from operating activities 25,858 39,243
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

i Bl i B 32

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 4311 [LF&

2008 2007
k=3 FHET FAT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
KERBEEN Cash flows from investing activities
BB ATER(BRT Repayment from (advances to)

B A1) related parties 17,196 (17,196)
LEYE - BE R&E Proceeds from disposal of property,

FTiS k18 plant and equipment 685 9
BB Interest received 4,342 1,468
EEYE  BEREE Purchase of property,

plant and equipment (48,593) (59,675)
FERAERIE Prepaid lease payments made (48,550) =
EALEESNET N Dividend received from an associate = 2,114
U B T /8 1 &) Acquisition of subsidiaries 36 - 1,310
W HE T i (h FRE 2 Payment of deposit for acquisition

RS of land use rights = (14,711)
REtE NR 2 & Investment in an associate = (7,000)
BEREMZH Purchase of investment properties = (813)
HEHBA A Disposal of a subsidiary 38 = (478)

WEEGFTAZIRE F58 Net cash used in investing activities (74,920) (94,972)
BEEEIR SN Cash flows from financing activities
EHERRAZREF5E Net cash inflow from short term loans 56,867 104,511
HILIRITE R Bank loan raised 50,000 =
ERKEBERADERR Net cash inflow from trust receipts

BB R R EA and import loans and loans related to

ERZREFRA bills discounted with recourse 18,037 32,561
BEREBIRE TR A Net cash inflow (outflow) from debt

O ) F58 factoring loans 11,853 (28,349)
A 1T S AR T 31T Proceeds from issue of shares upon

B& 0 2 FT1S 508 exercise of share options 3,303 26,253
MEARLHRFFE Capital contribution from minority

shareholders of a subsidiary 626 20,499
XA Dividends paid (56,846) (57,201)
B RIT REAME KA Interest on bank and other
borrowings paid (47,590) (26,975)
BERHBEERSER Repurchases of shares including
brokerage expenses (7,748) (4,325)
BERITEN Repayment of bank loan (1,222) =
MEREES IS TR Net cash from financing activities 27,280 66,974
B RBESEFEZ O8Y)  Net (decrease) increase in cash
HINFRR and cash equivalents (21,782) 11,245
FOHEMREE Cash and cash equivalents
Gkt at beginning of the year 90,679 79,434
FRBESKRSEESE Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 68,897 90,679
R : Represented by:
RITEGFENERE S Bank balances and cash 77,068 92,401
RITEX Bank overdrafts (8,171) (1,722)
68,897 90,679
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
A A I 5 it B

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the design,
manufacture and sale of a wide range of electronic
products and securities trading.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”), amendment, or Interpretations
(“INTs") (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “new
HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are effective for
the Group's accounting periods beginning 1 April 2007.
The adoption of the new HKFRSs has no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current
or prior accounting years are prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under
HKAS 1 (Amendment) “Capital disclosures” and HKFRS
7 "Financial instruments: Disclosures” retrospectively.
Certain information presented in prior year under
the requirements of HKAS 32 “Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation” has been removed and
the relevant comparative information based on the
requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has
been presented for the first time in the current year.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A v S 25 i M

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 4311 [LF&

2.

R R EBIT 2B EMBRSE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & HKAS 1
(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)* - INT 12

HK(IFRIC) - INT 13

HK(IFRIC) - INT 14

Presentation of financial statements '

Borrowing costs
Consolidated and separate financial statements 2
Puttable financial instruments
and obligations arising
on liquidation '
Veesting conditions and cancellations '

Business combinations ?

Operating segments '
Service concession arrangements >

Customer loyalty programmes “
HKAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset,

minimum funding requirements
and their interaction 3

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2009.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2009.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2008.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2008.

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
A A I 5 it B

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS - continued

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting treatment for business combination for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1
July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control, which will
be accounted for as equity transactions. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of the other
new or revised standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the results or financial
position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Acquisition of additional interests of subsidiaries does not
fall within the definition of business combination under
HKFRS 3 “Business combinations” as the acquisition does
not result in a change in control. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the additional
interest acquired is recognised as goodwill.

All intra-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
A A I 5 it B

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Business combinations — continued

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 January 2005
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date
is before 1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant
acquiree at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 April 2001
continues to be held in reserves, and will be transferred to
the accumulated profits at the time when the business to
which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions
of net assets and operations of another entity after 1
April 2001, the Group has discontinued amortisation from
1 April 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Goodwill — continued

Gooawill arising on acquisition on or after 1 January 2005
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for
which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant business
at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.
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An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the associate, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has been passed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 4311 [LF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
when the Group’s right to receive payment has been
established.

Commission income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost or revalued
amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief
provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant
and equipment” from the requirement to make regular
revaluation of the Group’s land and buildings which had
been carried at revalued amounts prior to 30 September
1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land and
buildings is carried out. Prior to 30 September 1995, the
revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of these
assets was credited to the other property revaluation
reserve. Any future decreases in value of these assets will
be dealt with as an expense to the extent that they exceed
the balance, if any, on the other property revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of the same
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred
to accumulated profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Property, plant and equipment - continued
Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all development
expenditure and other direct costs attributable to such
project. Construction in progress is not depreciated
until completion of construction. On completion of
construction, the assets are transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong
Kong is depreciated over forty years on a straight line
basis after taking into account of the estimated residual
value. The cost of leasehold properties outside Hong Kong
is amortised over a period of fifty years or, where shorter,
the remaining term of the leases on a straight line basis.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress and leasehold properties over their estimated
useful lives using the reducing balance method.

The land and buildings elements of a lease of land and
buildings are considered separately for the purposes of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the
lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in
land are accounted for as operating leases.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 4311 [LF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.

Transfer to investment property will be made only when
there is a change in use, evidenced by an end of owner-
occupation for a transfer from owner-occupied property to
investment property; or a commencement of an operating
lease to another party for a transfer from property for
sale to investment property. For a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property that will be
carried at fair value, the difference at that date between
the carrying amount of the property and its fair value is
credited to the other property revaluation reserve. For
a transfer from property for sale to investment property
that will be carried at fair value, the difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
A A I 5 it B

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories including financial assets held for trading
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #;Z200843 A31H -4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — continued
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including debtors, deposits, bank balances and cash,
amounts due from related parties and amounts due from
associates) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include significant financial difficulty
of the issuer or counterparty; default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or it becoming probable
that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period ranging from 30 days to 90 days
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
A A I 5 it B

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities generally
include other financial liabilities and derivative financial
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors, amount due
to an associate, bank overdrafts and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify
for hedge accounting

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
A A I 5 it B

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly
in equity is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and recognise a collateralised borrowing for
proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A v S 25 i M

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 4311 [LF&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Share-based payment transactions — continued
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions -
continued

Share options granted to employees — continued

For share options granted to employees on or before
7 November 2002, or granted after 7 November 2002
and vested before 1 April 2005, the financial impact of
share options granted is not recorded in the consolidated
financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated
income statement in respect of the value of options
granted. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess
of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which
lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on
a straight line basis over its useful life on the same basis
as intangible assets acquired separately, and carried at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted-
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all further costs to completion
and costs to be incurred in selling and distribution.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Impairment (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Leases — continued

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight line basis.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Foreign currencies — continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefits schemes

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits scheme
or the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF"”) Scheme are
charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to contributions.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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4.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY - continued
Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the physical
conditions and saleability of inventories at each balance
sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production. The management estimates
the net realisable value for such finished goods and
consumables based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March
2008, the carrying amounts of goodwill is HK$27,671,000.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed
in note 18.

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2008, no deferred tax asset was
recognised in the Group’s balance sheet in relation to
the estimated unused tax losses of HK$132,592,000
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where
the actual future profits generated are more or less than
expected, a material recognition or reversal of deferred
tax asset may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
such a recognition takes place.
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it WEZF|MEEREED
ZOMER - BEBEEHEHRN
NEBEZ2007F3A318 IE4
EZFEPERENF6@) R
RTIXFE R E]BEE -

(i) BAKBERGOBEZE
XBE(NEEEM KFE
=PaR i U

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Business segments

The Group is organised into two operating
divisions, namely design, manufacture and sale of
electronic products and securities trading. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information. The Group has
one more operating division, namely property
development, in both years. However, the Group
did not earn any turnover from this division and
that the segment results, assets and liabilities of
this division are insignificant. Accordingly, segment
information in respect of the property development
division is not presented. Such information included
in note 6(a) of the Group’'s annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 is
now considered as “unallocated” below.

(i) An analysis of the Group’s turnover, which
represents sales of goods, and results by
business segments is as follows:

ETER
REt > W
R$E
Design,
manufacture
and sale of BHEE
electronic Securities &5t
products trading  Consolidated
TET FTEx FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EZ2008%F3H31H Year ended 31 March 2008
EEE
EXR TURNOVER 2,199,033 - 2,199,033
DEEE SEGMENT RESULTS 97,406 (6,110) 91,296
FEWA Interest income 4,342
RAFKA Unallocated income 3,773
AAERAT Unallocated expenses (15,979)
BEYMEZANFE  Increase in fair value of
EEm investment properties 27,531
WEIELEKNBAT  Gain on deemed partial disposal
e 2 8 A of a subsidiary 279
BB Finance costs (47,590)
FE(FEEZ A RER]  Share of profits of associates 373 - 373
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5. THEERN - &

(a)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

¥%oE - & (@)  Business segments — continued
ETER
et > #iE
R#E
Design,
manufacture
and sale of BHEE
electronic Securities At
products trading  Consolidated
TET FERx BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BR B A4 A Profit before taxation 64,025
IR Taxation (18,531)
REE = F Profit for the year 45,494
Hit &R OTHER INFORMATION
ERENE - BE Additions of property,
B plant and equipment 48,593 - 48,593
EmERKAEH Amortisation of product
development costs 347 - 347
BN AERIE Prepaid lease payments made 48,550 - 48,550
BN EFIEE < Release of prepaid lease
payments 1,070 - 1,070
mE -~ BB K Depreciation of property,

RiETE plant and equipment 55,198 = 55,198
REREE Allowance for doubtful debts 5,961 = 5,961
RERBHEIFE Net allowance for obsolete and

BEFE slow-moving inventories 1,648 = 1,648
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5. SEEY — & 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(a) XX oE — & (a) Business segments — continued
ETER
Rt B
RHE
Design,
manufacture
and sale of RHEEE
electronic Securities &5t
products trading Consolidated
FBT FET FBT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£ Z=2007%43H318  Year ended 31 March 2007

LFE
=L TURNOVER 2,434,241 - 2,434,241
SRS SEGMENT RESULTS 136,149 7,736 143,885
FEWA Interest income 1,468
RKHBUWA Unallocated income 5,815
AAERAT Unallocated expenses (19,365)
AHtHEREZ Impairment loss recognised in respect

ERRREEE of available-for-sale investments (150)
BEMEZ T Increase in fair value of

E{EE N investment properties 3,322
WEAEBHHENE  Gain on deemed partial disposal

RA)ZHER 2 A of a subsidiary 10,194
HEMB2ARZ%F  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 99
BMEKA Finance costs (26,975)
JE(R B &N B F Share of profits of associates 1,613 = 1,613
BR 75 Al e 7 Profit before taxation 119,906
BiE Taxation (9,715)
REEEF Profit for the year 110,191
Hitt & OTHER INFORMATION
EEYE - BE Additions of property, plant

PET and equipment 63,383 = 63,383
EmERKAEH Amortisation of product

development costs 346 - 346
BN EEFIER D Release of prepaid lease payments 121 - 121
mE -~ BB L& Depreciation of property, plant

e and equipment 52,542 - 52,542
HEWE - BER Loss on disposal of property,

2 EB plant and equipment 155 = 155
REREAE Allowance for doubtful debts 4,489 = 4,489
RERFHITE Net allowance for obsolete

B and slow-moving inventories 4,057 = 4,057
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S SEER - & 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(a) %¥K2E - & (a)  Business segments — continued
(ii) BAREBEBDEZE (i)  An analysis of the Group’s consolidated
EEEBBERANMAT : balance sheet by business segments is as
follows:
BfEm
Rt~ BE
REE
Design,
manufacture
and sale of EHEE
electronic  Securities A&t
products trading Consolidated
TAT FHT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

720083 H31H At 31 March 2008

BE ASSETS

NEEE Segment assets 1,216,181 26,684 1,242,865
FE{HEEZ A TIMERS  Interest in associates 8,573 = 8,573
RAOBARIEE Unallocated corporate assets 222,872
AFTHBEEE Consolidated total assets 1,474,310
=N LIABILITIES

HEAE Segment liabilities 176,082 518 176,600
ADERARIARE Unallocated corporate liabilities 497,934
AitiaaE Consolidated total liabilities 674,534

#M2007%3H31H At 31 March 2007

BE ASSETS

DB E Segment assets 1,181,597 44,296 1,225,893
fE{REE = N FI#EZR  Interest in associates 8,200 = 8,200
RO AREE Unallocated corporate assets 198,905
BETREE Consolidated total assets 1,432,998
afE LIABILITIES

NEEE Segment liabilities 275,389 438 275,827
RABRARIBE Unallocated corporate liabilities 344,821
BETEEE Consolidated total liabilities 620,648
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5. EER — & 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
(b) HWESDI (b)  Geographical segments
(i) REBEFEMRKT - & (i) An analysis of the Group’s turnover in
ENEEZEERRR respect of design, manufacture and sale of
FRlEMEMmEZE o2 electronic products by geographical markets
DR : based on location of customers is as follows:
2008 2007
FHET FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JbEM North America 1,348,799 1,579,914
BOM Europe 782,738 685,520
B Hong Kong 17,463 54,295
B K e Mainland China 422 6,723
ERAYSEEAET Japan and Korea 4,221 1,336
H A B Other countries 45,390 106,453
2,199,033 2,434,241
(i) DEEENRERNENMZ (ii) An analysis of the carrying amount of
RHEBEZREEMEHE segment assets and capital additions
D Z2omwT analysed by the geographical areas in which

the assets are located is as follows:

AHEEZREE
Carrying amount EZEm
of segment assets Capital additions
2008 2007 2008 2007
TERT TAT THERT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N Hong Kong 310,903 643,381 28,226 36,408
=M North America 424,317 333,234 3,853 6,689
B K B Mainland China 426,183 214,431 16,514 20,281
H B %R Other countries 55,360 10,922 = 5
1,216,763 1,201,968 48,593 63,383
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6. Huplk A 6.  OTHER INCOME
2008 2007
FExT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HAa W A B : Other income comprises:
2 U K Claims received 148 9
He Commission 6,206 10,456
BIEEERE 2 RE W= Dividend income from investments
held-for-trading 1,434 1,091
PE F e - R Exchange gain, net 1,048 =
HEME - BE RHRE2 W Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 10 -
A2 e Interest income 4,342 1,468
Mozt (#:E) Rental income (note) 3,773 5,815
W E Repairing income 1,263 3,450
FERLSHE W Sale of scrap materials 2,275 1,953
FEIR Sundry 1,695 1,467
22,194 25,709
Ktz - 143,000 7o (20074 : 42,0007 Note: Outgoings of HK$143,000 (2007: HK$42,000) were

JC) £ 18 & Yz 5 §83,630,0007 7T
(20074 : 5,773,000 7T) FREA 2

incurred resulting in net rental income of HK$3,630,000
(2007: HK$5,773,000).

FX e
7. ®WEMRK 7. FINANCE COSTS
2008 2007
FH&T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE Interest on
—SERNEHHE — borrowings wholly repayable
within five years 40,586 25,656
—REEHRFLORESH — margin accounts and short term
RNaEl 2B loans from securities brokers - 6
BRARERE A Factoring charges 7,004 1,313
47,590 26,975
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2 £ 3%2,227,0007 jT (20074 :
3,361,000/ 7t.) &A% 153 15 312,000
7 7T (20074F : 2,566,000/ 7T ) °

Annual Report 2008 &£3% /1

8. B& B4 A 35 A 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2008 2007
FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRA% AR Al 5T E B 0B Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging:
JEE o B R P AN 8 Amortisation of product development costs 347 346
IZE BB & Auditors’ remuneration
—KFE — current year 3,529 3,774
—BEFE RS — underprovision in prior years 515 =
Y - B REREITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 55,198 52,542
FHELE G 2 REEE Impairment loss on properties for sale
(BIEHEKA) (included in cost of sales) = 356
HEME - BE K&E 2 EE Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment - 155
HEEF 2 LEMAKK Minimum lease payments under
M H operating leases in respect
of rented premises 6,077 4,390
REREAE Allowance for doubtful debts 5,961 4,489
PRERBIH T EREFE Net allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories 1,648 4,057
AR ERIERE Release of prepaid lease payments 1,070 121
it 7t Jo A 2 A AR Research and development costs 43,614 36,761
BINA BREEEME Staff costs including directors’
(Bi3E) remuneration (note) 159,471 157,299
Hat . AFAEB IRA S ENKEF 5 Note: The staff costs for the year included retirement

benefits scheme contributions of HK$2,227,000 (2007:
HK$3,361,000) and share-based payments of HK$312,000
(2007: HK$2,566,000).
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9. EEkEEM= 9.
AEBRNEBRESTMEFEDOT:

B ZE2008F3H31HILLEE

DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the
directors are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2008

%
HitjE 5
EEEF BB
Salaries EXMEBAR HE R
and other Performance Retirement
short term related benefits oAk
we employee incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
T THET THERT TERT THERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HITES: Executive directors:
2855 Lau Sak Hong, Philip 50 8,009 268 208 8,535
ks Lau Sak Kai, Anthony 50 1,388 87 74 1,599
2858 Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 50 1,257 76 67 1,450
FHTES: Non-executive director:
#EEH Hon Sheung Tin, Peter 50 20 = - 70
BIFHTES ! Independent non-executive
directors:
1] E 8% Ho Hau Chong, Norman 50 - - - 50
PR Z Chan Chak Chung 50 - - - 50
BE Chuck Winston Calptor 50 = - - 50
350 10,674 431 349 11,804
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9. EENEEME — & 9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS -
continued
HZE2007F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2007
&%
H A 55 HR
EER=A RRE T
Salaries fERIEENIN K R
and other  Performance Retirement
short term related benefits Hews
Hwe employee incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
TAT FHL TAT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BTES: Executive directors:
2855 Lau Sak Hong, Philip 50 8,183 286 205 8,724
28 Lau Sak Kai, Anthony 50 1,360 94 73 1,577
2358 Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 50 1,233 83 66 1,432
FHTES: Non-executive director:
sl Hon Sheung Tin, Peter 50 - - - 50
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
] 8% Ho Hau Chong, Norman 50 - - - 50
BRZ Chan Chak Chung 50 - - - 50
2FRE Chuck Winston Calptor 50 — - — 50
350 10,776 463 344 11,933
BERRENRTIBEE T EARER The performance related incentive payments are
ANEEHE2008F3A31HIERF 2 &K determined by the performance of the individual and the
WRANEIMEE ° Group's performance and profitability for the two years

ended 31 March 2008.
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For the year ended 31 March 2008 #:Z200843 A31H L4

0. EENEEME - &

B8
ARESERRFM AL BEIR
(2007 : 3R)ES ARAREMNE 2
FIEER L3 E - HER24% (20074 ¢
22) BT HMESEZMEMT

DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS -
continued

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
three (2007: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2007: two) highest paid employees are as
follows:

2008 2007
FERT FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000

M K2 LAt 52 A Salaries and other short term
EERA employee benefits 3,072 2,509
B EREN TR Performance related incentive payments 148 606
RIREAFTE 5K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 24 24
A 9 5 5% Share-based payments = 240
3,244 3,379

HEEEME S BHENT ¢

Emoluments of these employees were within the following
bands:

EBEAH
Number of employees
2008 2007
1,000,001%7C— 1,500,000 7 HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001% 7T —2,000,000% 7C HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 1
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10. MHIE 10. TAXATION
2008 2007
FTER FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
MIBEXH (ER) B : The charge (credit) comprises:
EBMEH Hong Kong Profits Tax
REFEFIA Current year 15,843 4,275
VAR S B RE B4 Overprovision in prior years (7) (312)
15,836 3,963
HAth Bl 2 IR Taxation in other jurisdictions
REERIA Current year 2,058 3,589
LART & & D IR s Underprovision in prior years 9,328 1,472
11,386 5,061
IEEFLTE (H17£31) Deferred taxation (note 31) (8,691) 691
kel Taxation 18,531 9,715
BEBMERARNFEE 2 5t BRTR Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2007:
IR FER17.5% (20074 : 17.5% ) & 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
% o
Hih xRz BERER AR 2 Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
RIIMEFE - BEFEZLVREH rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. The
FERBRIMEAGBERRAEE TR underprovision in prior years mainly arise from a
BB A 7] X & £220044F &200543 A settlement of corporate tax audit with the Canada
BSTHIEMEENMEREEE ZBAD Revenue Agency related to allocation of income by a
RETEEBERAMES  REFF subsidiary of the Group between Canada and Hong Kong
B2HBEFRETH - for the two years ended 31 March 2004 and 2005. The

tax audits are now closed for these years.
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10.

BE - &

M2007E3 0168 » AE AR EMEH
([HEDBERBEBEREREES F63
REMPFEAREFNBECERBH L
([#FrB%]) - 2007412868 » F &
B 75 B 78 3T AR BB A MR o M BLE
RERERSAEES THEKBA
7] Z Fi & H2008%F 1 18 #£ H33%K
B25% c L EZH12%ERBEZ
FEIKEARIME - #7H EH2008F
1H1B RIS RZE IS iNE25% 8
ARERRNEAESRRAGEEESH
MZHAERETSHAEBEREAX

-2 K

AEERIALLS A W R ARG BA
m M E AR

10.

TAXATION - continued

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC") government promulgated the Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law"”) by Order No. 63 of
the President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations
of the New Law. The New Law and Implementation
Regulations will change the tax rate from 33% to 25%
for certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008. For those PRC subsidiaries enjoying privilege rate
of 12%, the new tax rate is progressively increasing to
25% over five years from 1 January 2008. The adjustment
of tax rates that are expected to apply to the respective
periods when the asset is realised or the liability is settled
does not have any significant impact to the Group.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated income statement as
follows:

2008 2007
FHxT F&TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BR A% AT A Profit before taxation 64,025 119,906
BAMFT ST E17.5% Tax at the domestic income tax
(20074 : 17.5%) T E 2 H1E rate of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) 11,204 20,984
E(REtE AR RE  HIATE Tax effect of share of results of associates 65 282
AT B A E IR 2 Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible for taxation purposes 1,626 2,411
B AR e B R IR & Tax effect of income that is not taxable
for taxation purposes (2,881) (2,270)
REMBDERKEEF 2 Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
WEBARTRMEZZE operating in other jurisdictions (1,233) (2,392)
RIERTISE IR E T IE & Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 5,792 2,048
AR ARTER 2T Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
RS IR 2 previously not recognised (5,265) (7,613)
— KM B A R PR IR Effect of tax exemption granted
N2 (Ki) to a subsidiary (note) (1,908) (3,569)
VAR S [ D 1R B4 Underprovision in prior years 9,321 1,160
HAh Others 1,810 (1,326)
AFEEHIE Taxation for the year 18,531 9,715
Hiet - %M R RARIE A B RE R 2 % Note: The subsidiary is exempted from taxation in other

KRG R R @M E M RAR 2 T

I8 o

in that jurisdiction.
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1. KRE 11.  DIVIDENDS
F A ANE B 520074 K H A B 47 During the year, scrip alternative was offered in respect of
AR EEE - REEEHUBRRE the 2007 final dividend. The scrip alternative was accepted
B HAWT by the shareholders, as follows:

HK$
FET
A2 Dividends:

e Cash 18,908
PARR (X B 2 Scrip alternative 8,769
27,677
BES AT ESERMANEE2008E3 31 The directors have resolved not to recommend a final
HIFEEZ RBEEEREEN (2007 dividend, for the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007: final
F RN RE (ATEIEHS) B scrip dividend with a cash option of HK3.5 cents per

3.57%81) ° share).

12. SRBREF 12.  EARNINGS PER SHARE
SREARABTGEBBERATIBEBEIAT The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
BRstE is based on the following data:

2008 2007
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$’000
RETEEREARAREERF Earnings attributable to shareholders
Z AR FIIRER RS BF of the Company for the purposes
of basic and diluted earnings per share 45,914 105,196
Number of shares
2008 2007
R EERERAR Weighted average number of
Z AR O E B shares for the purposes of
basic earnings per share 790,246,143 762,850,032
MBI EAE R A RS (ERE Effect of dilutive potential shares
f&in 2 fo 2 relating to share options 8,080,944 16,681,079
RETEEREERT Weighted average number of shares
ZIntEE AR GO 2B for the purposes of
diluted earnings per share 798,327,087 779,531,111
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13. BEYE 13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2008 2007
FHERT FH&TT
HK$’000 HK$'000

KEMFEZ N TE Fair value of investment properties:
REF At beginning of the year 81,121 76,500
BE Additions = 813
ERARFELEME Transferred from properties for sale = 486
NIEE N Increase in fair value 27,531 3,322
RELR At end of the year 108,652 81,121

BEYXEEIERRE The carrying amount of investment

properties comprises:

EEBURBPHEOFEE Long leases in Hong Kong 94,000 68,060
EEBAINARBABEORFE Long leases outside Hong Kong 14,652 13,061
108,652 81,121
REBKEMEZ AFETIBEEK The fair values of the Group’s investment properties have
EEVERE B UAEREEMGE been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out
MRAEERTETHETERS - & on the balance sheet date by an independent qualified
BEMEESEENR HEANETLHAE professional valuer not connected with the Group.
At BhEA LI 5 2 KB o Z(HE AR The valuer has appropriate qualifications and recent
EZRBEMENSERHERBER - experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the

relevant locations. The valuations were arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties.

AEBUKERAEEERIKFAELE All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
REERE 22 HMMERBZHURTF leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
BEENE  WABEYIEEEYE - are measured using the fair value model and are
R2008F3A31H  ZEWMERTZZ classified and accounted for as investment properties.
IR M {8 /108,652,000 7T (20074 : As at 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of such
81,121,000/ JT) ° property interests amounted to HK$108,652,000 (2007:

HK$81,121,000).
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14. ME--MENLEKE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
B £B
]
Furniture,
HENE ERERE fixtures RE HBEREEZ ERIE
Leasehold ~ Computer and Motor  Plant and Construction -
properties equipment equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
TAT AL T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAEREE COST OR VALUATION
M2006E4 818 At 1 April 2006 119,855 22,397 103,057 15,353 467311 - 727,973
[ i % Currency realignment - 84 (50) - 17 = 51
e Additions 78 5,005 3,498 1,783 49,311 - 59,675
KERBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries - 614 1,200 - 1,894 - 3,708
ERBRELENS Transfer from properties
for sale 611 - - - - - 611
e Disposal - - - (400) (609) - (1,009)
HERBAT Disposal of a subsidiary - (397) (1,453) - (14,615 - (16,465)
M2007F3A318 At 31 March 2007 120,544 27,703 106,252 16,736 503,309 - 774,544
BT Currency realignment - 3 3 - 48 - 54
E Additions - 1,666 5,466 729 40,313 419 48,593
k3 Disposal (168) = (459) (2,077) - - (2,704)
12008%3A31H At 31 March 2008 120,376 29,372 111,262 15,388 543,670 419 820,487
B Comprising:
KA fE At cost 90,976 29372 111,262 15388 543,670 419 791,087
[BEE-1991F At valuation - 1991 29,400 - - - - - 29,400
120,376 29,372 111,262 15,388 543,670 419 820,487
ik DEPRECIATION
M2006F4A1H At 1 April 2006 18,120 14,679 82,702 12,835 304,903 - 433,239
[ iR Currency realignment = 7 (6) = 14 = 15
TERE Provided for the year 2,268 2,863 4,810 792 41,809 - 52,542
L ERHEH Eliminated on disposal - = = (268) (577) = (845)
{1 P A R 3 Eliminated on disposal
of a subsidiary - (340) (1,294) = (14,615) = (16,249)
M2007F3A318 At 31 March 2007 20,388 17,209 86,212 13,359 331,534 - 468,702
AR Currency realignment - 3 - - 38 - 41
TEHE Provided for the year 2,285 2,580 4,521 776 45,036 - 55,198
HE R 8 Eliminated on disposal (3) = (90) (1,936) - - (2,029)
12008%3A31H At 31 March 2008 22,670 19,792 90,643 12,199 376,608 - 521,912
EHE CARRYING VALUES
1200834318 At 31 March 2008 97,706 9,580 20,619 3,189 167,062 419 298,575
120074%3A318 At 31 March 2007 100,156 10,494 20,040 3,377 171,775 - 305,842
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14.

X -BEREZE - &
EEMNNEENKREANELSESE
T REEYHOE EEEEDE
ZRAEHEERIOFAEFERE
BEIRBENEFT - FEUIIEERA
EMENEREEROF L (WERE
FH) MOPTRF T E R -

Hib¥% BMERXBEIREMA
P F IR & e R RS A B T E AN
HRA - fIAFERET -

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong
Kong, which included prepaid lease payments that cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, is depreciated over forty years and after taking
into account of the estimated residual value. The cost of
leasehold properties outside Hong Kong is amortised over
a period of fifty years or, where shorter, the remaining
term of the leases on a straight line basis.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the reducing balance method at the following
rates per annum:

EN R 25% Computer equipment 25%

R~ B REE 10 — 25% Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 — 25%

= 20 = 25% Motor vehicles 20 - 25%

TR 55 Ko e 23 15 — 30% Plant and machinery 15 - 30%

P FEEYMHE ZERERSE : The carrying value of the leasehold properties shown
above comprises:

2008 2007

FET FABT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EEBURAEOREE Long leases in Hong Kong 27,022 27,440

EBRBAINAR LS Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 70,684 72,716

97,706 100,156

HEVMERIZBLEEHEMTR
1991 FEEBRACEEZ ARMEAET
NEF - AEERNE BT ERSE
1615 E80AEE B RIR E T BEMASE
EREMEZBERRE  WIHEBEEAE
E—TPEFHEVE-WHEDER
200843 A31H fRHE & 4&27,022,000/8
7t (20074 : 27,440,000/ 7T ) & AKX A
BREFNERZRFTREBEYE -
HEWMER2008F3A31H 2 E®EF
B8 4 /520,920,000 7t (20074 :
21,286,000/ 7T) °
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The valuation of leasehold properties was carried out by
a firm of independent professional valuers in 1991 on an
open market value for existing use basis. The Group has
adopted the transitional relief provided by paragraph 80A
of HKAS 16 from the requirement to make revaluation on
a regular basis of the Group’s leasehold properties and,
accordingly, no further revaluation of leasehold properties
will be carried out. Had these leasehold properties with
a carrying amount at 31 March 2008 of HK$27,022,000
(2007: HK$27,440,000) been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, the carrying value of the leasehold properties at 31
March 2008 would have been stated at HK$20,920,000
(2007: HK$21,286,000).
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15. FANHEENRIE 15.  PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
AREBZEMNEERBSRE The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:
2008 2007
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBRINAFERLEE Leasehold land held under medium
BT term leases outside Hong Kong 66,448 4,257
FEHRE MDA Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MENEE Current asset 1,386 121
ERBEE Non-current asset 65,062 4,136
66,448 4,257
16. EmBRALX 16. PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS
FABT
HK$'000
BAE COST
R2006F4 8 1H ~ 200743 H31H At 1 April 2006, 31 March 2007
20083 H31H and 31 March 2008 1,732
# AMORTISATION
1200654518 At 1 April 2006 432
FEMR Charge for the year 346
7200743 A31H At 31 March 2007 778
FREMR Charge for the year 347
7200853 H31H At 31 March 2008 1,125
SREE CARRYING VALUE
7200853 H31H At 31 March 2008 607
7200743 831H At 31 March 2007 954
EmERKANANEZEDSFEH - Product development costs are amortised over a period of

five years on a straight line basis.
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17.

18.

= 17. GOODWILL
FHETT
HK$'000
BAE COST
720064 H1H At 1 April 2006 9,149
U B B B8 1 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries 37,934
WAR 2 RUENT B N Al B ME = Deemed acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary 531
HEH B AR Disposal of a subsidiary (19,121)
WA 2 R EH B AR h s Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary (2,999)
F200793A31H At 31 March 2007 25,494
W 2 B EEM B A R FEIME R Deemed acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary 2,183
R R EH B A RSO ER Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary (6)
7A2008%F3H31H At 31 March 2008 27,671

BB ZRERAFBEHIINKIEI8 -

723 8 Rl 15 R 5L

WP ESAEE - AEBEUARH DA
ERBEDEEMNEZT R - 3R
BRARAMS ME17MEBED K
TEEMEARGELEN ([REeE
TEM])  BEMRK; HER
HEETEMEBZMEBAR - 25l
48,111,000 7T 517,991,000/ 7T
(20074 : 8,111,000% 7T 515,814,000
HIL) °

HRARSELASBUNTTKRESETIR
EREEEE FEEREEMEL
TERBARERE -BEXUAREF
ABAMBEERAR 2B EE - BE
EBRBERAL RAERRE %
XRRMIGEFHEERHEENRLR
TELBURERRMFMG BRX
AEREBRBRARBELE  WARERE

BV AR -

RAFEE AEBERBEREH KK
FHBEESHREREBARTEE
BERERIFZIBEERB0% 2R -
Fiifse F 2 B3R R 58% (20074 : 8% ) ©
HREARURERASEZFERHEES
RECELEEMZERAE  WRED
B AR EES -
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18.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in note 18.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

As explained in note 5, the Group uses business segments
as its primary segment for reporting segment information.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill as set
out in note 17 have been allocated to two cash generating
units (“CGUs"), including two subsidiaries in the design,
manufacture and sale of electronic products segment
amounting to HK$8,111,000 and HK$17,991,000 (2007:
HK$8,111,000 and HK$15,814,000).

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGUs has been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. The
key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the year. The
management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in
revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budget for the next year by the
management and projections extrapolated at 0% growth
rate for subsequent four years using a discount rate of
8% (2007: 8%). The value in use calculated by using the
discount rate is higher than the carrying amount of CGU,
accordingly, no impairment loss was considered necessary.
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19.

PB4 B D TR 19.  INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
2008 2007
FExT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REE ARIEEKA » JEET Cost of investment in associates, unlisted 13,576 13,576

G W R - kR Share of post-acquisition reserves,

B B net of dividend received (4,082) (4,455)
9,494 9,121
B EREREEEE Less: Impairment losses recognised (921) (921)
8,573 8,200

AREBBERR ZFHBHOT

JiE

Details of the Group’s associates are as follows:

AEEES
¥RAERKR oM/ EEnE R
Form of Place of HEMEAREE Attributable
BENTHB business registration/ Nominal value of equity interest ~ TEEH
Name of associate structure operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
IRBBEETERAR  AELE i 800,000% T 68.75% 68.75% EEEHK
( [bmasE] ) Co-operative  PRC US$800,000 (& FXhzt) Inactive
Beijing Commune Fair joint venture (see note below)
Electronics Co. Ltd.
("Beijing Commune”)
Danehill Investments BREARA REES 7,000,000/ 7T 48.28% 48.28% WA
(Holdings) Limited Limited Cayman HK$7,000,000 Investment holding
liability Islands
company
BEABRAA BREARA FE 500,000747T 30% 30% EEEFEM
(IBH#]) Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 Trading in electronic
Interforce Limited liability products
("Interforce™) company
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19.

BhBE R AaERs - &
or=a

RiEWHZ  ERmEREE ~A5B=ZH1t
REBEIB50% .2 0% M sk BB o ANEER L R
IBEEERWRGEGE BEFEEH6
&= H 367 - 20024108 @ 4L B 18
AR 8 B P % B 0 R T A AR B BT B
HEEEECTE It REBEANEEER -
A B RS B MR E B 18921,000%8
TG DAMSERZIR B 2 BRE(E -

BE N RAARRREEREER -

REEERA 2 WEKANBIEEFWE
HEs & X B T 2 A 2 7 23,779,000/%8 7T
(20074 : 3,779,000/ 7T) °

ERAEEBERAR ZHBER B
YR

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES - continued
Note:

Under the agreement, during the life of the agreement, the
Group is entitled to share 50% of the profit or loss of Beijing
Commune and the Group does not have controlling interest in
the board of directors of Beijing Commune because it was the
power to appoint three out of six directors of Beijing Commune.
In October 2002, the business certificate of Beijing Commune
has been cancelled by the PRC government as the company did
not renew its business certificate. Beijing Commune became
inactive since then. An impairment loss of HK$921,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements to write off
the carrying amount of the investment.

The associates are indirectly held by the Company.
Included in the cost of investment in associates is goodwill
of HK$3,779,000 (2007: HK$3,779,000) arising on

acquisition of an associate in prior year.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associates is set out below:

2008 2007

FHT T T

HK$000 HK$'000

BERE Total assets 33,993 26,445
=N Total liabilities (21,610) (15,327)
BEFE Net assets 12,383 11,118
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 5,715 5,342
=X Turnover 190,117 214,417
F A 1 A Profit for the year 1,266 5,408
FE(RES & N 7)) F Share of profits of associates 373 1,613
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20.

AHHERE AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
2008 2007
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
&N e Equity securities
JE LM » LA Unlisted shares, at cost 26,690 26,690
B BEERFEBE Less: Impairment losses recognised (2,650) (2,650)
24,040 24,040
REBRIN ERM - Listed shares outside Hong Kong,
BAYE at fair value 12 35
24,052 24,075
MEBAMAEITS - Analysed for reporting purposes as:
ERBEE Non-current asset 24,052 24,075

REER AIHEEREZAELT
B BAARFEIEK REREZR
FELSEZERTSMREANEETE -

Fifi 3 EHARE R E B R M AL
ERMBETZIHFLTHRABZKE -
HREER ?ﬁfﬁﬁ.ﬁréel%ﬁ ZAN/N

AESRRREASER RFE -
Et%%%&%fﬁ(‘ *”EI&@@ZMDB?
WERS

FETRABLFTBERREHREE
% 2 12 4 AR 2 AE B AR 7% 2 2 AINet Plus
Company Limited ([Net Plus]) Z217%
(20074 : 17%) RAERIRE - BE
FEEHRERV B ERARERSE
2,500,000/ 7T ° A20084F3A31H -
%%Q%ﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁi?&ﬁz%ﬂﬂﬁé
HeREREREFRERTE TR

A0 U Bl ANet Plusz 25 2 BREI{E °

As at the balance sheet date, all listed shares included
in available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value.
Fair values of these investments have been determined by
reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

The above unlisted investments represent investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in Hong Kong. They are measured at cost less
impairment loss at each balance sheet date because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Included in unlisted equity securities was an investment
of 17% (2007: 17%) equity interest in Net Plus Company
Limited (“Net Plus”), a company engaged in investment
holding and provision of healthcare related services. An
impairment loss of HK$2,500,000 was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in prior years. At 31
March 2008, the directors reviewed its carrying amount
with reference to the present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the investment
and considered that the carrying value of the interest in
Net Plus is recoverable.
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2. TAEMIBE EBERRQAFER 21.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS/FINANCIAL

ANEBZEREE ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
&E =X
Assets Liabilities
2008 2007 2008 2007
TER THET TER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
() BERELTFETA () Financial assets designated
BR/ERERE at fair value through
profit or loss:
THRBEEEPHERE Buy-write certificates on:
—REE LT RAES — equity securities listed in
Hong Kong 1,606 10,728 - -
—REBFEIN LT — equity securities listed
IR FE S outside Hong Kong 6,543 10,067 = -
8,149 20,795 - -
(i) FEEERHAHRIA (i) Derivative financial instruments
ZUTHSRIA not designated as hedging
instruments:
IR E Foreign exchange option 120 480 - =
REBRIN LT 2 RA Options on equity securities
BHIEERE listed outside Hong Kong - - (518) (438)
120 480 (518) (438)
8,269 21,275 (518) (438)
BEHRHEREEEH TSR YUEA The buy-write certificates contain embedded derivatives
BZBmAXPTETLRE Atk FTEA which are not closely related to the host contracts,
HENEEERRATEFAERZ accordingly, the entire combined contracts have been
TRIEE ° designated at financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss.

86 Starlight International Holdings Ltd  F+ [ B B2 & BR 2 &)




NOTES TO THE CONSOUD/\TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 4311 [LF&

21. FT4ESMIE EEARAFAEL 21.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS/FINANCIAL

AERZEREE — & ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS - continued

AFINVBEBERHZBR . 2 EFEH On inception of the buy-write certificates, the strike price
FEHXZIS FZTEE - FHBARER of the underlying equity securities, maturity date and
Hlo o NS ERHERENEEREE observation period would be determined. At the end
BEmE BERAE S 2 mESH of each observation period or on maturity of the buy-
THEEETER - WEEFHEE TFZ write certificates, market price of the underlying equity
MEERITEE BEPHEZEBW securities would be compared to the strike price. The buy-
BIERNARESZN - WEEHREER write certificates would be terminated and settled in cash
ZTMERRETES HEZEEKNA if the market price is higher than strike price. (The buy-
BRERFEE - write certificates would be settled in shares) if the market

price is lower than the strike price.

BEDHEBZ ATFEDIBEZESL The fair values of buy-write certificates are determined
CRTREERAZTEZRE KR based on market prices quoted by securities brokers which
REEEGARRFECMEMET ° are determined based on inputs such as share price,

volatility, dividend yield of the underlying equity securities.

22. ZE 22. INVENTORIES

2008 2007
FExT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JRF Raw materials 197,817 187,366
R Work in progress 11,893 14,646
SUPK i Finished goods 333,896 249,232
543,606 451,244
RAEE REGRERERAIZH The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in the
ZT_f‘fﬁXZlKL1,664,663,0005%7E(2007 consolidated income statement during the year amounted

£ 1 1,946,605,000/8 7TC) ° to HK$1,664,663,000 (2007: HK$1,946,605,000).
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23. EWERER -BRERESKE 23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
2008 2007
FERT 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEWE 5 B8R Trade debtors 192,803 279,630
BHEER IS Deposits with securities brokers 19,657 11,708
AR THER Advances to suppliers 31,920 35,560
TSR Fe H A fE R IR Prepayments and other receivables 24,645 16,806
269,025 343,704

RAEE B RWE SRR CNGRRREE)

The aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for

ZEREB AT doubtful debts at the balance sheet date is as follows:
2008 2007
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
0=~ 0)=! 0 - 30 days 103,982 229,768
31608 31 - 60 days 38,261 11,950
61—90H 61 — 90 days 17,269 2,072
HB3E90H Over 90 days 33,291 35,840
192,803 279,630

AEBRTHEBEZRFZBREHN T
30H £90H - REME M EF AT
EEEHADTHBEERFZEEER
ZERFIMNIEERSE -

AEERERRKESEZRAEEAE
54,014,000/ jt (20074 : 43,039,000
BIL) ZEWFIE R EBHBE &
B - BAREE W ARELREESERERE -
REEWEZE LRI A TR -
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The Group allows an average credit period ranging
from 30 days to 90 days to its trade customers. Before
accepting any new customers, the management will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential
customer and define appropriate credit limits.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$54,014,000 (2007:
HK$43,039,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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23. EBWENR RERENKE - & 23.

CRMEEREZEKE SRR

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS - continued
The aged analysis of trade debtors which are past due but

BoOMMT : not impaired is as follows:
2008 2007
FERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
31-60H 31 - 60 days 9,155 5,818
31-90H 61 — 90 days 11,568 1,381
HB3E90H Over 90 days 33,291 35,840
54,014 43,039

REEEEERIRER 2ERCHE
E@BERRE BEER KA K
-z FRFRMBEIEHME
ARAEFHREBEEMZZEE R
ERERNE LRI REEEREMR

Based on the experience of the management and
repayment record of the customers, trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired are generally
recoverable. For those balances associated with litigations,
the directors of the Company will assess the cases based

BEAE o on legal advices from lawyers and provide allowance for
the irrecoverable debts.

REREBE 22T Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
2008 2007
FE T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F4 At beginning of the year 10,475 5,986
HEFERERDHERZHERE  Impairment losses recognised on debtors 5,961 4,489
FHR At end of the year 16,436 10,475

AREBREBELEENEREZE S EK
BRI A4 5249/59,943,000/8 7T (2007
F :6,041,0008 L)  RERZER
FEBRNBRENBEE- -
E 5 W IR A 544,231,000/ 7T (2007
F 1 4,231,000% ) EEBIRE - REAE
AZERESHREPEMPEMETEZ

Fri:EFME -

EEEDCHEMHEZEZEHEAZMF
HoTHRAARZAEZREESBH
HeRE MEEE S ERERRLEH
2,059,000 JT (20074 : ££) 2 & Bl
fgo

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade debtors with an aggregated
balance of HK$9,943,000 (2007: HK$6,041,000) which
have either been placed under liquidation or in severe
financial difficulties. In addition, a debtor balance of
HK$4,231,000 (2007: HK$4,231,000) has been individually
impaired since such debt will be settled by the customer
at a discount as agreed by arbitration.

The management has withdrawn a litigation against a
trade debtor as they consider the legal and professional
expenses involved will be high, and the related debtor
balance of HK$2,059,000 (2007: nil) was individually
impaired.
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23. FEWEIF - REEENHE — & 23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS - continued
EWE SERBEAEBERERRER Included in trade debtors are bills discounted with recourse
80,426,000/% 7T (20074 : 78,233,000 amounting to HK$80,426,000 (2007: HK$78,233,000)
B IT) &EEE@Q%H&E&%W,ZZS,QOO% and factored debtors amounting to HK$17,223,000 (2007:
7¢ (20074 : 13,734,000/ 7T) ° HK$13,734,000). The Group provided a credit guarantee
BEMZERUESRS Z%EHEFHE over the expected losses of those debtors. Accordingly,
REEERZE-Alt  AEBEES the Group continues to recognise the full carrying amount
HEREWESFIRR ZEREE W iE of the debtors and has recognised the cash received as a
REWIRE AEEFEE (RHE29) - secured borrowing (see note 29).

24. FEWREEALTFHIE 24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
MR2007563H - ARAlEF2HEEE In March 2007, certain close family members of Mr. Lau
y%f_ﬁ%}i%ﬁ)z TEIEALAEEEES Sak Hong, Philip, a director of the Company, exercised
?%sz,ﬁﬁﬁﬂg 28 2 2 R)20,072,000 the share options granted to them as employees of the
REBER & /\17 196,000/% 7T ° & Group to subscribe for 20,072,000 ordinary shares in the
RIEE R2007F4B 2 H - B H Company at an aggregate amount of HK$17,196,000.
HEREERARES - Such amounts were fully settled in early April 2007. The

amounts were unsecured and interest-free.

25. J,EI.B(/FE{‘J'WM/A\ B F1E 25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES

FEFERERR £ 28 &/,\E’Wi The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
NE B RIFER - EUWHS QA I8 on demand withon one year. Included in the amounts due
B35 FE W B & X &) BR 511,049 OOO/%TL from associates is a trade receivable from an associate of
(2007%4:1,049,000/4 JT) * BR&: B 3@ HK$1,049,000 (2007: HK$1,049,000) which is aged over
90H - 90 days.
AR AEBHERRE  THER Such balance is past due but not impaired as the associate
BERARARNFRNELEEIHRERER generates positive cash flows and profit during the year,
A EEFIEL R EEE - accordingly, no impairment loss is considered necessary.

26. BHEEERSE 26. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

2008 2007
FERT FABIT
HK$°000 HK$’000
S Listed securities

RED EMRAFE S Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 4,230 7,152

REBIRIN LR E Equity securities listed outside
Hong Kong 16,151 17,668

REBIRIN LT EBES Debt securities listed outside

Hong Kong - 793
20,381 25,613
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27. BOTHZHERRR 27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
RTEGLRRSBRASEMFEES - Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
AR JRERR3ME A LA T EIE - BF15 and short term bank deposits with an original maturity of
F R K AEZ0.01E (20075 : 1.50E) 2 three months or less at an average interest rate of 0.01%
WHISR (TR K © (2007: 1.50%) per annum.
28. ENERINLESEHR 28. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES
2008 2007
THT FHTT
HK$°000 HK$'000
e E SRR Trade creditors 101,584 193,281
FERTHF B R IEMT Royalty and withholding
tax payable 19,124 9,341
T FRIE Receipt in advance 755 11,355
HA R E SRR & Other creditors and accrued
FEETR expenses 54,749 59,852
176,212 273,829

REZRRNE SRR K& TN

The aged analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet

™~ date is as follows:
2008 2007
FHET FBTT
HK$°000 HK$'000
0—30H 0 — 30 days 70,671 146,779
31—60H 31 - 60 days 17,887 21,159
61—90H 61 - 90 days 5,500 10,782
HBi#E90R Over 90 days 7,526 14,561
101,584 193,281

KEEmZ FARKYR0H - AEED
B REREERER  AEERMAE BN
REHREERRAEE -

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the
credit timeframe.
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29. B 29. BORROWINGS
2008 2007
FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBFEOT : Borrowings comprise the followings:
SREIE R AR ER Trust receipts and import loans 141,883 126,039
MHIER Short term loans 181,989 125,122
BRABREREZER B Loans related to bills discounted
with recourse 80,426 78,233
RITER Bank loan 48,778 =
BERERRIRE Debt factoring loans 11,974 121
465,050 329,515
DT Analysed as:
Z=giigii Secured 232,297 95,777
AR Unsecured 232,753 233,738
465,050 329,515
EEEERAT : The borrowings are repayable as follows:
2008 2007
FET FABT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERFRFIEFR On demand or within one year 430,160 329,515
1F1&B2F R More than one year but not
exceeding two years 11,110 -
2F & {B5F A More than two years but
not more than five years 23,780 -
465,050 329,515
W mEBBEETNEMER Less: Amounts due within
BEZHIE one year shown under
current liabilities (430,160) (329,515)
34,890 -
AEBZERBZEEER  HEFNE30 The Group’s borrowings are floating-rate borrowings
[EZ6.2]F (20074 : 4.9]2 =5.62[F) &t which are interest bearing at a range from 3.0% to 6.2%
B BUAFNNENSGAENTEE- (2007: 4.9% to 5.62%) per annum. Interest is repriced

every month.
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30. MITEX 30. BANK OVERDRAFTS
AEBZRTESZRARZERBE-BH The Group’s bank overdrafts are floating-rate borrowings.
FEIZFHFEFIZE6.1E (20074 : 8[F) The interest is charged at an average interest rate of 6.1%
STEUREBAEHTE - (2007: 8%) per annum. Interest is repriced every month.

31. EERHIE 31. DEFERRED TAXATION
AEEERBATFEERREZELEH The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and
HEEREEREEZSHWOT : assets recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

MEHREFE RENKREMR

Revaluation
Accelerated of  BEEH
tax investment Tax Hith o)
depreciation  properties losses Others Total

THBT THAT TAR FB THET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

By zE
(note)

200654418 At 1 April 2006 (11,199) (2,311) 7,607 274 (5,629)
EWEA (H18) Credit (charge) to income

e for the year 2,827 (892) (2,626) - (691)

20073 A31H At 31 March 2007 (8,372) (3,203) 4,981 274 (6,320)
ERA (08) Y Credit (charge) to income

for the year 2,050 (2,734) 2,046 7,329 8,691

#2008%3H31H At 31 March 2008 (6,322) (5,937) 7,027 7,603 2,371

B EmEEEFEZARSRGEMNAME Note: Others mainly represent temporary difference arising from

EZERER - unrealised profits on inventories.

R2BVNEEBEXRMNS & TELH For the purposes of the balance sheet presentation,

HEERBGBEDHHE BEMBRS certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.

BB REFIBARDTAT ¢ The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

2008 2007

FHET FH&TT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEEFIBE E Deferred tax assets 7,542 1,263

ELEFIEAGE Deferred tax liabilities (5,171) (7,583)

2,371 (6,320)
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31.

32.

Starlight International Holdings Ltd  F+ [ B B2 & BR 2 &)

EERIE — & 31. DEFERRED TAXATIONS - continued
ERREBETRKGEFNKRE  N&E The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in respect
I A% Bt F% 18 &5 $#8132,592,000/% 7T of tax losses of HK$132,592,000 (2007: HK$129,570,000)
(20074 : 129,570,000/ 7T ) ¥ R iE due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
EHREBEAE AR EBEEBSRE Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of
86,593,000/%8 JT (20074 : 81,141,000 HK$86,593,000 (2007: HK$81,141,000) that will expire
7 7T) 1’ PA20094F F£20194 (20074 : in the years of 2009 to 2019 (2007: 2008 to 2019), other
2008F F=20194F ) BIH 2 518 - EMhFi tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
HGE A R A4 -
RIE AR BFTAG] - ;200851 A1 HEE - Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
PR MERBIERMBRRDIKRE consolidated financial statements in respect of the
i T B AN TE AN B o BB AN & B AT 4 temporary differences attributable to the undistributed
HlE =R RO BB R AR retained profits earned by the subsidiaries in PRC
A RERKERER=8 FHIESE amounting to approximately HK$314,000 starting from
BHREVERPBRZ2MNBARIZ RS 1 January 2008 under the New Law of PRC that requires
KRB HEANZEREZE ZIELERIEL withholding tax upon the distribution of such profits to
314,000 JoEr iR B o the shareholders as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
N 32. SHARE CAPITAL
RO E
Number T
of shares HK$'000
BHREE0.408 T2 EiEAR Ordinary shares of HK$0.40 each
SEERRA Authorised:
20064818 - At 1 April 2006, 31 March 2007
200743 A31H and 31 March 2008
K& 2008F3H31H 1,250,000,000 500,000
BEITRBERE Issued and fully paid:
7200654 H1H At 1 April 2006 760,880,614 304,352
1T BB A A T 31T 2 IR 1 Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 30,434,500 12,174
AR Repurchase of shares (3,707,500) (1,483)
200743 A31H At 31 March 2007 787,607,614 315,043
TR AR AR A T 31T 2 ARt Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options 3,160,000 1,264
BT EEUBRARE Issue of shares as scrip dividends 4,776,214 1,910
EAmliiEr) Repurchase of shares (5,165,000) (2,066)
7A2008%F3H31H At 31 March 2008 790,378,828 316,151
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32.

A& — &
ARRBRAZ BEFEOT :

(a)

fE2006F 118 AARETHE
PEEERA ATE  AEARQ
Al LA F[%0.40/%5 . £0.898 7T 2
1B 1% 3£ 777,982,500/% & f% M &
0.408 T2 &1p °

H2006F 128 ' A AR E T B
BEERSBATE ALAR
7] LA & 1%0.80/%8 ;T £0.897% T
2 B 1% 3 17760,000/% & i% & &
0.408 T2 &7 °

R2007F1A AR aElHTE
fEREERE ATE  AEARQ
7] A 5 f%0.8958 T 2 (B #& 3 1T
250,000% & % E {80.40/% T 2
B ©

200738 AR A& THEK
BERBATE BEARA
LA HR0.80 T E1.728 L 2B
& 3£ 1721,442,0000% & B% M &
0.408 T2 &7 °

HEH Z2007F3A31B L& E
A 0 N R B FE B AR PR @ H AR
DT

SHARE CAPITAL - continued
Details of the changes in the share capital of the Company
are as follows:

(a)

In November 2006, 7,982,500 shares of HK$0.40
each were issued at a range of HK$0.40 to HK$0.89
per share as a result of the exercise of certain share
options of the Company by their holders.

In December 2006, 760,000 shares of HK$0.40
each were issued at a range of HK$0.80 to HK$0.89
per share as a result of the exercise of certain share
options of the Company by their holders.

In January 2007, 250,000 shares of HK$0.40 each
were issued at HK$0.89 per share as a result of the
exercise of certain share options of the Company
by their holders.

In March 2007, 21,442,000 shares of HK$0.40 each
were issued at a range of HK$0.80 to HK$1.72 per
share as a result of the exercise of certain share
options of the Company by their holders.

The Company repurchased its own shares on the
Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 March
2007 as follows:

BRER
BB EE Price per share HRE
Number =2y =1 Aggregate
A& Month of shares Lowest Highest consideration
BT BT FET
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
2006454 May 2006 765,000 1.11 1.13 856
200656 A June 2006 2,295,000 1.11 1.16 2,622
2006510 A October 2006 647,500 1.26 1.28 824
3,707,500 4,302
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32. BAR - & 32. SHARE CAPITAL - continued
NERMDREBREZHE  WARAE The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and
BT AR B R R it 55 I 10 T (B 48 FE R accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
Lo BBRIMMG ZIRECINE RataF - was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The
HEEREEBROEME 2 S H Rt premium on repurchase was charged against accumulated
Yim A1 B B 2= NG KB o) {4 o profits. An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the
shares cancelled was transferred from accumulated profits
to the capital redemption reserve.
(f) R2007%F48 AR REl&TE (f) In April 2007, 500,000 shares of HK$0.40 each
REEREATE BlEARQ were issued at HK$0.814 per share as a result
A AT IR0.8148 T 2 B & 31T of the exercise of certain share options of the
500,0000% & A% T 180.407% 7T .2 Company by their holders.
f& A7 °
(@) M20075%5H - KARaElE THERK (99 In May 2007, 2,660,000 shares of HK$0.40 each
HEEAATE AR AR A were issued at a range of HK$0.814 to HK$1.72
A R%0.814B L E1.728 L 2 per share as a result of the exercise of certain share
{E & 2% 172,660,0000% & f% ™ & options of the Company by their holders.
0.40% 7T 2 & 17 ©
(h)  TA20074F108 - A B bAE %1.836 (h)  In October 2007, 4,776,214 shares of HK$0.40
BT Z BIE 174,776,214 & each were issued at HK$1.836 per share as scrip
IRE{E0.407% 7T 2 IR 0 1E & DA IR dividend.
"S5
(i) RE Z2008F3A31H IEFE (i) The Company repurchased its own shares on the
A AR R TR AT E AR Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 March
DT 2008 as follows:
BRE®K
RAHE Price per share BRE
Number BI& BS Aggregate
A% Month of shares Lowest Highest consideration
BT BIT 7BIT
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
2007 10H October 2007 2,222,500 1.42 1.54 3,371
2007411 H November 2007 2,942,500 1.43 1.52 4,333
5,165,000 7,704

AERMPRBEIDEH  BA
RABEBITEAEREWFR
P EEARER D - BEED 2
HmECI A RFEN - HER
RO EE BBEA AR
i A R A O A
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The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase
and accordingly the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value of
these shares. The premium on repurchase was
charged against accumulated profits. An amount
equivalent to the nominal value of the shares
cancelled was transferred from accumulated profits
to the capital redemption reserve.
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32.

33.

BRA — &
A BITRMD
BERTZBRNZE

BT EEERRE

:
EELEE

B R RE ST &

RATZBRETE

RRF 2 EREREIE KR20026F9H12
BRERTRREI R TERBKRAA
HiSE ([E&1El)) - EFt8IE A2 HE
EHASEELN CERMRHESEE LT
B-EfgchBERSEABELEN
BB FHTES HmkRBHE
P BAAREBRUREAEE
ERIKE AR ZHER »

RBEEFIBRTZERBREEST
EREAETZESROHEH  TE5H#
BIRBEHTRMND210% MAEE
B R AITERBRER 7RO LR
BB TS EITHRGNZ30% °

HEBRERK ZBAEMI2EAR -
BRYS2HEAZERERTEmD L
M TFETZROLE Tl BT
REZETIRG Z21% °

BREATENRHESRRT K
A BB L B REF5EF AR AR
TP 8 P B PR P9 ) 5 PR 77 (S BB ASUAEE
EBRERETERREANREE -

BREZENDABEHETRAE
HEEBERTREERNR TEREE
Bz lmE  RHBEEX G AH
A EESER S ARG FHKRTE 3k
(iR EEERACEHE &S E
R o

ROBREZZOAERE A HER
2BARM - REBREZKER/E
T R MAEMEMBR T TAIRE -

32.

33.

SHARE CAPITAL - continued
All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option schemes of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was
approved and adopted at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 12 September 2002 (the “Old
Scheme”) for a period of 5 years. The primary purpose is
to provide incentives or rewards to participants for their
contribution to the Group. Eligible participants of the Old
Scheme included any employees, non-executive directors,
suppliers of goods or services, customers, advisors or
consultants and shareholders of any member of the
Group.

The maximum number of share options which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Old Scheme of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% while overall limit for all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in
any 12 month period up to the date of the grant will not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board,
which will not be more than 5 years from the date on
which the option is granted. The option may be exercised
by the grantee at any time during the option period. Each
share option vested immediately at the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by the Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the
average of the closing price of the shares of the 5 trading
day immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the
nominal value of the shares on the offer date.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer. The consideration
for the grant is HK$1 and it will in no circumstance be
refundable.

Annual Report 2008 £ i

97




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
A A I 5 it B

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

33. EBERRE:E - & 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
APTAzBEREE — & Share option schemes of the Company - continued
E:t 282 R2007F9A1MBER & The Old Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and
% BRI R IEE R 21 BB E o thereafter, no more option could be granted pursuant
RBBEAEERL2EREMS - to the Old Scheme. In respect of the options already
BEBABXBNAER - REETEE granted under the Old Scheme, the provisions shall remain
BHZERESSBFROT : in force. The movements of the share options granted

pursuant to the Old Scheme were as follows:

BREHAR
Number of share options
READ
8 RAT EAXFE REHK
Outstanding RITHE e RATE
IEE at Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise beginning during at end
&F B H# Date of grant price of the year the year of the year
AT
HK$
B Z2008F3H31H  For the year ended
IHFE 31 March 2008
2003%F10H10H 10 October 2003 0.86 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
2004511 H2H 2 November 2004 0.814 2,500,000 (2,000,000) 500,000
200651 H5H 5 January 2006 0.89 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
2006F8 A 16H 16 August 2006 1.15 500,000 (500,000) =
200611 H13H 13 November 2006 1.45 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
200741 A48 4 January 2007 1.66 820,000 (600,000) 220,000
200742 H1H 1 February 2007 1.72 100,000 (60,000) 40,000
200743 H7H 7 March 2007 1.93 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
23,920,000 (3,160,000) 20,760,000
FRATITE Exercisable at the end
of the year 20,760,000
InEFHITEE Weighted average exercise
(&) price (HK$) 1.09 1.05 1.10
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33. BERRE:E - & 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
AT ZERESTE — & Share option schemes of the Company - continued
BREZR
Number of share options
REA
fef RATHE EXEE EEREE RER
Outstanding ART RfTRE e RATE
THE at Granted Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise beginning during during at end
BTAH Date of grant price of the year the year the year of the year
BT
HK'$
BZ2007%3A318 For the year ended
ILEE 31 March 2007
2003%F5A2H 2 May 2003 0.40 1,700,500 - (1,700,500) -
2003 10H 108 10 October 2003 0.86 15,144,000 - (12,144,000) 3,000,000
200458 H24H 24 August 2004 0.808 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) -
200411 A2H 2 November 2004 0.814 2,650,000 - (150,000) 2,500,000
2005512220 22 December 2005 0.80 4,910,000 - (4,910,000) -
200691 A5H 5 January 2006 0.89 19,160,000 = (7,160,000) 12,000,000
200658 H16H 16 August 2006 1.15 = 500,000 500,000
2006F11H13R 13 November 2006 1.45 = 2,000,000 = 2,000,000
20071 H4R 4 January 2007 1.66 = 2,050,000 (1,230,000) 820,000
200762A18 1 February 2007 1.72 — 240,000 (140,000) 100,000
200743A7H 7 March 2007 1.93 = 3,000,000 — 3,000,000
46,564,500 7,790,000  (30,434,500) 23,920,000
FERA TR Exercisable at the end
of the year 23,920,000
IETATEE (BL) Weighted average exercise
price (HK$) 0.84 1.68 0.86 1.09

PA LR i i 1 h B B RS A TTME -

FAETEBRER

Tz ik

TR B A2.4678 7T (20074 : 2.22/8

)

ARRYERBEAERTESEM

B -

The above share options were granted for an exercise
period of five years from the date of grant of the share

options.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was HK$2.46

(2007: HK$2.22).

No share options have been granted to the directors of
the Company pursuant to the Old Scheme.
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33.

BRESTE — &

KRB zBREE — &

RN BIHR20085% 1 158 2217 2 IR R 4%
FIASE E@BHRA A B0F 2 38R
EETEI(FErEl]) - FZEBNERKS
2HEZEE  BREREBEESES
EReHAEBEFEEEBE AN
BR -tz ERL2EERIEAR
EBEE2HBESEREES  THAT
WIEANTT R T B R IEB ) ~ &
A REBERERM -

BEF TSR 2 B EETEm
AREBRTZRaRMNEE  THBA
REEH 21 2008F1 B1SHEMN B 2
BETRMZ210% MEEEFEE KR
AIfTERERERDEE ~A BB
BT MH 230% °

REREREZANNRZEAR &2
HETEBREMBETRE TETZ
RO BBETABEREREHETRAZ
1% » BRIFE TIRIFEZRK -

BREATEHRBEERRE @ H
PRAIREH B BEI0F - AR A
ARBERESRATAREITER
Pt

BERELRABEERAEZTRRE KA
RAERASERANNE TEREE R
Bfn 2 Ya i (B ¢ (i3 i B B R E &S A
R 5B RO FHETE i mH R
REBRHzEENGSEFH -

REBREZHARE ARG
28ENERMN - RIHBRIEZRERVE
T A BEEMABR T AAERE -
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33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share option schemes of the Company - continued

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was
approved and adopted at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 15 January 2008 for a period
of 10 years. The primary purpose is to recognise the
contribution of participants and to recruit and retain
high calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group. Eligible participants of the
New Scheme included any full time employees (including
directors, whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not), suppliers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the New Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of
the shares in issue at the adoption of the New Scheme
on 15 January 2008 while overall limit for all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the option granted to each participant in any
12 month period up to the date of the grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless certain conditions
are fulfilled.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board,
which shall not be more than 10 years from the date on
which the option is granted. The option may be exercised
by the grantee at any time during the option period.

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by the Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the
average of the closing price of shares on the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the
nominal value of the shares on the offer date.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer. The consideration
for the grant is HK$1 and it will in no circumstance be
refundable.
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33. BERRE:E - & 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
AATZBRESTE — & Share option schemes of the Company - continued
BEFMFEIEHEEZBEREZSH BN The movements of the options granted pursuant to the
R New Scheme were as follows:

FRAERERR
200843 H31H
HWARITEZBRERE

Number of share

options granted

THEE during the year

Exercise and outstanding

& i B H# Date of grant price as at 31.3.2008
BIT
HK$

BE2008F3A31HLFE For the year ended 31 March 2008

200841 A23H 23 January 2008 1.042 150,000
200841 A28H 28 January 2008 0.96 346,000
496,000
F4RA] F17{E Exercisable at the end of the year 496,000
MEFEHTEE () Weighted average exercise price (HK$) 0.98
A EBEREREHBHRI10FERITHE - The above share options were granted for an exercise
period of ten years from the date of grant of the share
options.
ARARWEBEAAER TESEM No share options have been granted to the directors of
B IR HE o the Company pursuant to the New Scheme.
REEN - YRR 8 A 5% 4 5 R Total consideration received during the year from
itz 8RB A27%8 T (20074 : 24 employees for taking up the options granted amounted to
BIT) o HK$2 (2007: HK$24).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share option schemes of the Company - continued
The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted are measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the services received is measured based on the
Black-Scholes pricing model.

33. HBRESTE - & 33.
APTAzBEREE — &
FREREMBHEREZ ATFED
SEMBEHBEREZ AFETE A
BB RE 2 AFETIEE T 7-5F B H
EERA -

B Z2008F3A31HILEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2008

20084 20084
1HA23H 1H28H
R B Grant dates 23.1.2008 28.1.2008
fElE 2 R FEERERE Fair value of share options and assumptions:
REtERHZ AFE (BT) Fair value at measurement dates (HK$) 0.224 0.263
IRE (BIT) Share price (HK$) 0.880 0.960
1B (BT) Exercise price (HK$) 1.042 0.960
TERTR IR Expected volatility 53.95% 49.32%
FEARFEHARR (4F) Option life (years) 3 3
TEHARR B & Expected dividend yield 4.35% 4.38%
42 [ e 1| 2= Risk-free interest rate 2.56% 2.56%
B ZE2007F3HA31BLLFE For the year ended 31 March 2007
20065 20064 20074 20074 20074
8H16H 11HA13H 1H4H 2A1H 3A7H
R B Grant dates 16.8.2006 13.11.2006 4.1.2007 1.2.2007 7.3.2007
R A TFERRS Fair value of share options
and assumptions:
RErERE 2 AFE (L)  Fair value at measurement
dates (HK$) 0.223 0.317 0.343 0.346 0.323
(B (BT Share price (HK$) 1.150 1.440 1.640 1.720 1.920
17188 (A7) Exercise price (HK$) 1.150 1.450 1.660 1.720 1.930
RETR IR Expected volatility 39.45% 39.40% 37.08% 36.37% 30.59%
EAREER (F) Option life (years) 2 2 2 2 2
HEIRE X Expected dividend yield 5.28% 2.69% 2.47% 3.54% 3.35%
= g Risk-free interest rate 4.69% 4.69% 4.69% 4.69% 4.69%
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33.

BRETE - &

AR ZBRESE - &
BREREDRARRARENBE1F
MESKEMETE - a8 AE
HERTREEZERTEERITZE
TTERS RITAZEERRELN&KE
HEETURAE EZBBABRRZED
AREEHAFEZATENEATE -

AEERARARERNTH 2 BRE
7 R B 5% 42 %8125,0005% 7T (20074 :
2,500,000/ 7T) ©

The Singing Machine Company, Inc.
(TSMCJ » KA RFES4.07%ERZ
MEAR) 2 BRE

SMCHE i # 51 81 E 200159 H6H
BOZRERAE EESMCIE R
A ([SMCEH&I]) e SMCEHEI v % T
EE KkEEE mAAR B
Kb NS B ek AR R R LA SR B
SMCEBI Z 0k SMCET 2| RS
$£1,950,000f8SMCE @A - & & A
T % B BUAF [E A E 5 & =450,0008%
f&1n °

HEBERERD BRI EMMI2EA
N RTFTE2EAZEREETEM
EEERBETET2EARNDEBE B A
300,0000% f& 15 °

BIRERITEMRBEMCEERIRTE
AR BN R B R ET10F (WA
FEZBERIO%KU EZFAA A
R5F) - ARARRBRERRAML
MEETEERE - SERERET
= BRARERE

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share option schemes of the Company - continued
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
one year. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$125,000
(2007: HK$2,500,000) for the year in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“SMC"), a 54.07% owned subsidiary
of the Company

SMC’s share option scheme was approved by SMC's
shareholders at the special meeting held on 6 September
2001 (the “SMC Scheme”). The SMC Scheme was
developed to provide a means whereby the directors and
selected employees, officers, consultants, and advisors
of SMC may be granted incentive or non-qualified stock
options to purchase common stock of SMC. The SMC
Scheme authorises an aggregate of 1,950,000 shares of
SMC's common stock and a maximum of 450,000 shares
to any one individual in any one fiscal year.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
in any 12 months period up to the date of the grant will
be 300,000 shares.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board
of SMC, which will not be more than 10 years (or 5 years
in the case of a holder with 10% or more of the common
stock) from the date on which the option is granted. The
option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during
the option period. Each option vested in one year from
the date of grant.
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33.

BRESE - &

The Singing Machine Company, Inc.
(TsMC] » AR RFH54.07% 2
MEBLR) 2BRETS — &
BREIENRBEARERZRS
(TZEg)RE ZEEARSMCES
RTBEE 28K A FEEHEK - B
BZRBESTEBMCROHNRED
BHiZlmE (MR FiHEEAR
10%HALEZFHEBEAME - REER
B EBSMCIR D R E 4 B B T B
Z110%) °

mF :

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“SMC"), a 54.07% owned subsidiary
of the Company - continued

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by the Stock Option Committee (“Committee”), which
consists of two or more directors chosen by the Board of
SMC. The subscription price of the share options will be
no less than the closing price of SMC'’s shares on the offer
date (or, if granted to a holder of 10% or more of the
common stock, the subscription price will be no less than
110% of the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer
date).

The movements of the share options granted pursuant the
SMC Scheme were as follows:

BRENE

Number of share options

R B8 TRE FARATH FRERE FRETE FAERK FRERGE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during during during at end
Date of grant price  of the year the year the year the year  of the year
#Z20085 For the year ended
3A31ELEE 31 March 2008
20006°9A5H 5 September 2000 2.04 43,650 = = (7,500) 36,150
2002694118 11 September 2002 11.09 30,000 - - - 30,000
2002412A318 31 December 2002 9.00 90,140 - - (1,000) 89,140
2003F3A7H 7 March 2003 25.60 30,000 - - - 30,000
2003547188 18 April 2003 7.20 10,000 - - - 10,000
20035124198 19 December 2003 1.97 39,600 - - (4,060) 35,540
200452 A6H 6 February 2004 1.54 46,500 = = = 46,500
200463 4298 29 March 2004 1.20 20,000 - - - 20,000
200454 4268 26 April 2004 1.05 12,000 - - - 12,000
2004511 H29R 29 November 2004 0.75 60,000 - - - 60,000
2004612R18 1 December 2004 0.77 40,000 - - (20,000) 20,000
200545H9H 9 May 2005 0.60 207,000 - - (25,000) 182,000
20056 H6H 6 June 2005 0.76 30,000 = = = 30,000
200651 720A 20 January 2006 0.34 30,000 - - - 30,000
200652718 1 February 2006 032 30,000 - (30,000) - -
200653318 31 March 2006 032 80,000 - - - 80,000
2006547108 10 April 2006 033 484,000 - (117,515) (30,000) 336,485
200743A318 31 March 2007 0.93 100,000 - - (20,000) 80,000
2008F3 4318 31 March 2008 0.45 = 120,000 = = 120,000
1,382,890 120,000 (147,515)  (107,560) 1,247,815
RERT1TE Exercisable at the end
at the year 1,029,296
METHTEE Weighted average exercise
(£71) price (US$) 2.49 0.45 033 0.85 1.68
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33.

RS — & 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
The Singing Machine Company, Inc. Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
(F'sMcCl » AR EHHE54.07%#Exm 2 Company, Inc. (“SMC"), a 54.07% owned subsidiary
MEAR) 2BRETSE — & of the Company - continued
BREHE
Number of share options
REAH TEE FOHATE FRERE  FAEBTRE  FRERN FRAEAGTE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding

Exercise  at beginning during during during at end
Date of grant price  of the year the year the year the year  of the year
HZ2007F37318 For the year ended

I35 31 March 2007

2000F9A5H 5 September 2000 2.04 51,150 - - (7,500) 43,650
2002694118 11 September 2002 11.09 30,000 - - - 30,000
2002%12R318 31 December 2002 9.00 125,640 - - (35,500) 90,140
2003F 17248 24 January 2003 1.26 10,000 = - (10,000) -
2003F3A7H 7 March 2003 5.60 30,000 = - - 30,000
2003F4A18H 18 April 2003 7.20 10,000 - — - 10,000
2003F 127198 19 December 2003 1.97 129,820 - - (90,220) 39,600
2004F1A238 23 January 2004 1.60 32,000 - - (32,000) -
20042 A6H 6 February 2004 1.54 46,500 - - - 46,500
2004F3 4298 29 March 2004 1.20 20,000 - - - 20,000
2004F4 7268 26 April 2004 1.05 12,000 - - - 12,000
2004F 11 A29H 29 November 2004 0.75 60,000 - - - 60,000
200412818 1 December 2004 0.77 40,000 - - - 40,000
2005F5A49H 9 May 2005 0.60 483,000 - (115,000) (161,000) 207,000
2005%6 A6H 6 June 2005 0.76 30,000 - - - 30,000
2006%1A208 20 January 2006 0.34 60,000 = (30,000) - 30,000
2006%2A1H 1 February 2006 0.32 30,000 = - - 30,000
2006F3A318 31 March 2006 0.32 100,000 - (20,000) - 80,000
2006F4A108 10 April 2006 0.33 - 843,000 (120,000) (239,000) 484,000
2007F3A318 31 March 2007 0.93 - 100,000 - - 100,000

1,300,110 943,000 (285,000) (575,220) 1,382,890

REKATT{E Exercisable at the end
at the year 582,307
METHIRE Weighted average exercise
(%7) price (US$) 211 0.39 044 141 2.49
FHEREERELRBREREB B The above options were granted for an exercise period of
BI10ERNTTE - ten years from the date on which the options are vested.
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33. MERERTE - |
The Singing Machine Company, Inc.
(TsMC] » A2 B H54.07 % Ex 2
MEBAR) 2ERESE — &
FRABETEZBRERTEE B2
BTPHRERC2AET(ZETLF
0.86%7T) °

ARAEEHERBEMCGHEIERE
o] B8 R HE -

SRS AR A R B 2 R FETD
2EMBRLBERBZAVFEFE A
SR 2 A FET IR -5 R
EERA A -

B ZE2008F3H31HILLEE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“SMC"), a 54.07% owned subsidiary

of the Company - continued

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year was US$0.24

(2007: US$0.86).

No share options have been granted to the directors of
the Company pursuant to the SMC Scheme.

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted are measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the services received is measured based on the

Black-Scholes pricing model.

For the year ended 31 March 2008

2008%3H31H

R A Grant date 31.3.2008
REt2REZ AFE (FT) Fair value at measurement date (US$) 0.12
f&E (£7T) Share price (US$) 0.45
7168 (1) Exercise price (US$) 0.45
BRI IR Expect volatility 67.41%
MR AR () Option life (year) 3
TR B Expected dividend yield 0%
a2 3 B = Risk-free interest rate 3.3%
BE2007F3A31BLFE For the year ended 31 March 2007

200743H31H
REBH Grant date 31.3.2007
Ret2BH A FE (E7T) Fair value at measurement date (US$) 0.34
IRE (E7T) Share price (US$) 0.93
7% E (1) Exercise price (US$) 0.93
TBEHRIE Expect volatility 90.77%
HERRHEEAR () Option life (year) 1
TR HARR B Expected dividend yield 0%
422 53| Bz 1) 2 Risk-free interest rate 4.65%

ANEE R FAFSMCE H 2 B8 & & 5%
R B X 4 58187,000/ jT (20074 :
66,0008 7T) ° 20074 2 FRIAI # B3
R2006F4A1BER L ERE 2 AF
B DTHRZEEREN RS B W E
SMCRIE R -
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The Group recognised total expense of HK$187,000
(2007: HK$66,000) for the year in relation to share
options granted by SMC. The amount for 2007 does not
include the fair value of share options granted on 1 April
2006 as these options were granted before acquisition of

SMC by the Group.
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34.

35.

EXEEEE 34.  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
REB ZEAEEEE S BEERH The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
ExEELRETEH BRASEZ the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
BERAFELE 2 TARRGE while maximising the return to shareholders through the
=N Bl 3} o 7K £ B 2L B2 5 WK BA 2k 4 4R optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
A ° overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
AREBZEARBBIEABEFHE (B The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
BEE (RWE29#H T) BRI & IR which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 29 net
S HEEHEB) RARRIRERERER (B of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
FBEBETRA  BERREERN) - shareholders of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and accumulated profits.
AR EEZERTFHRTENER - & The directors of the Company review the capital structure
SN2 HMOBBEEEEEAKARE regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
BEARFK A ZRAR ANEBSEB cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
IRERR B - BITHRG - BEKRD - & capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
THEBLEERBEEEE LR @ ¥ through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
2B RV 1 o share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
SRmIT A 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
SRIAENER Categories of financial instruments
2008 2007
FHET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
TREE Financial assets
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 24,052 24,075
BIEEBRE Investments held for trading 20,381 25,613
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 120 480
BT BEAFERTA Financial assets designated
B SREE at fair value through profit or loss 8,149 20,795
B PR IE Loans and receivables
(BB MRS (including cash and
LEIHE) cash equivalents) 316,001 421,357
TRIAE Financial liabilities
MTESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 518 438
HemaEd Other financial liabilities 624,931 555,407
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35. £@TH - & 35,
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& -

AEENUIINEHEZEREERER
EEEEEEARREARDERE) R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include debtors
and deposits, amounts due from related parties, amounts
due from/to associates, available-for-sale investments,
investments held for trading, derivative financial
instruments, financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss, bank balances and cash, creditors,
bank overdrafts and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

WEAZEKREABENDT : liabilities (including intra-group current accounts) at the
reporting date are as follows:

2008 2007
BE =N BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
TET THT FABT FABT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MEATT Canadian dollars 47,643 434 56,004 14,278
BXTT Euro 94 19,370 71 -
BT Hong Kong dollars 70,474 308,731 17,462 409,736
H Japanese dollars 4,172 2,876 2,305 2,705
JRFITT Macao pataca 53 - 83 -
AR Renminbi 153 3,712 398 1,683
Fans T Singapore dollars 2,670 935 7,381 -
E I United States dollars 145,195 102,881 142,659 99,030

SR E B AT R EVIMNE SR BUR -
Am - EEESEZIIERR  RE
FERKEREHTEAINERAR -
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The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk from Canadian dollars, Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars. Under the pegged exchange rate system,
the financial impact on exchange difference between Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars will be immaterial
and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in Canadian dollars and,
Hong Kong dollars against each group entity’s functional
currency (including Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi).
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where Canadian dollars and Hong Kong dollars strengthen
5% against each group entity’s functional currency. For a
5% weakening of Canadian dollars and Hong Kong dollars
against each group entity’s functional currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

2008 2007

THExT FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

mERT Canadian dollars 2,360 2,086
BT Hong Kong dollars (11,913) (19,614)

EEERSARNFEEZARY ER
REARNZER  BBEREDINHARE
[ A HME [

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate bank on bank balances. The directors
consider the Group’s exposure of bank deposits to
interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within short maturity periods.

In addition, the Group has cash flow interest rate risk on
floating-rate borrowings and bank overdrafts. The Group
currently does not have any policy on cash flow hedges
of interest rate risk. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The interest expenses on the Group’s floating-rate
borrowings are linked with Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for floating-rate
borrowing and bank overdrafts at the balance sheet date
(notes 29 and 30). The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents the management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 would decrease/
increase by HK$23,661,000 (2007: decrease/increase by
HK$16,562,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its floating-rate borrowings
and bank overdrafts.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Price risk

The Group’s derivative financial instruments, financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss,
held-for-trading investments and certain available-for-sale
investments are measured at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Therefore, the Group is exposed to price risk.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective financial instruments had
been 5% higher/lower:

o profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 increase/
decrease by HK$1,407,000 (2007: increase/decrease
by HK$2,323,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments, financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss and held-for-trading investments; and

o investment valuation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$1,000 (2007: increase/decrease by
HK$2,000) for the Group as a result of the changes
in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2008 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued

Credit risk — continued

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in North America. The trade debtors
located in North and South America accounted for 70%
(2007: 70%) of the Group’s total trade debtors as at
31 March 2008. The Group also has concentration of
credit risk by customers as 7.91% (2007: 32.14%) and
44 57% (2007: 52.07%) of the total trade debtors was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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35. SRTH — & 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
BHRAREEEERKRE — & Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued
HEBHELELE - & Liquidity risk — continued
MU EBEEELEE 2 STETAEMmMS - For derivative instruments settle on a net basis,
I HREBFHEESRL -EFTZH undiscounted net cash outflows are presented. Whereas
BAEER ZETAET A2 ;R/E\E S they require gross settlement, the undiscounted gross
HTREaERANEY - outflows on these derivatives are shown in the table.
BB 2 R FEE R & Liquidity and interest risk tables
AEBRS
REX  HMER hEsE
ERAI AlE Less 12388 3fERZIE SME Total HEE
Effective Repayable than 13 3 months Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  on demand 1 month months to 1 year Tyear  cash flows amounts

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

20085 2008
HiteRas Non-derivative financial
liabilities
BHRAMBZRMNER  Trade and other creditors - 41,506 65,156 23315 18914 - 148,901 148,901
EBERAFRE Amount due to an associate - 2,809 - - - - 2,809 2,809

8 Borrowings 35 20,114 146,096 297,572 35,692 39,050 538,524 465,050

IR Bank overdrafts 6.1 8,320 = = - - 8320 8171
72,749 211,252 320,897 54,606 39,050 698,554 624,931

fTAI8 - WFEEELE  Derivatives - net settlement

ik Options - 518 - - - - 518 518

2007F 2007

HiteRER Non-derivative financial

liabilities

BHRAMBZRMNES  Trade and other creditors - 48,699 132,645 12,391 27,626 - 221,361 221,361

EBERAFZE Amount due to an associate - 2,809 - - = = 2,809 2,809

g Borrowings 5.1 14,717 273,230 66,647 4,539 - 359,133 329,515

BITER Bank overdrafts 8.0 1722 = = - - 1722 1722
67,947 405,875 79,038 32,165 - 585,025 555,407

fTAIE - WFEEELE  Derivatives - net settlement

iR Options - 438 - - - - 438 438
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TRBREZETAEE RBREZE T
ERNAIRR S ERAPREIVAF  F
33 F K BAE F 1%£0.233% T (R EK
RN BEELT N 2 FER) - 0.283%
T (ZERF P ER 2120% ) %0.35%
T (ZERV P EK Z2150%) 2 BIKE
H #x %5,000,000 SMCHE JN % 17 © 3R
[REERETEHRZATERENA
5,532,000/ JT ° 33 IR ¥ 35 7 1 N ] 4
HEREENEHEERYEHE - 2H
WE T ABE S ARE - WEME
A 7 P2 537,934,000 7T ©
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35.

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

o the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices;

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments and
financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis; and

o the fair values of derivative instruments and
financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss are determined with reference to
quoted prices from securities brokers.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

In June 2006, the Group acquired 56.14% of the
issued share capital of SMC at a consideration of
HK$24,257,000, including legal and professional fees of
HK$952,000. In addition to the new shares, SMC also
issued warrants to the Group at nil consideration. The
warrants contain the rights to purchase up to 5,000,000
additional shares of SMC at prices of US$0.233 (the initial
price paid on a per share basis), US$0.28 (equals to 120%
of the initial price) and US$0.35 (equals to 150% of the
initial price) on the first, third and fourth anniversary of
the closing date of the transaction. The total fair value of
the warrants at the date of issue was HK$5,532,000. The
warrant reserve and available-for-sale investments were
eliminated on consolidation. The acquisition had been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was HK$37,934,000.
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36. WIEHWEBLAT — & 36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES — continued
RHEMWEZEBFERELAZE The net liabilities acquired in the transaction, and the
EHIWT : goodwill arising, were as follows:

FAT
HK$'000
FriiE 2 BB Net liabilities acquired:
M - BE k& Property, plant and equipment 3,708
FE Inventories 12,479
FEUWRRSK ~ 1&& RIENRIA Debtors, deposits and prepayments 13,892
RITEFE MRS Bank balances and cash 10,030
JER R BT E A Creditors and accrued charges (34,722)
FERT AR IE Taxation payable (19,064)
(13,677)
7 Goodwill 37,934
24,257
IATRF AR EZAT Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 8,720
WEENB AR ZEZE Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries 15,537
24,257
WHEFTE A <& (fd) A Net cash (outflow) inflow arising on acquisition:
ReRE Cash consideration (8,720)
Frihs 2 SR1TETF MRS Bank balances and cash acquired 10,030
1,310
SMCEEZEHRERE - £FE - D - #HE SMC is principally engaged in the development,
RIHERPOKSERE mHERTLE - production, distribution, marketing and sales of karaoke
ERMRERFERSGAM LM A% audio equipment, accessories and music and its shares
EE=REA WESMCZERAE=S are listed on the American Stock Exchange. The directors
MAEEEZTEREEER R RE of the Company considered that the acquisition of equity
AAEEZRADHBSE  EBUS interests in SMC could help to diversify the category of
AMmREACERE Bt A& products and extend the existing distribution network of
M FE 2 2 s (B W EESMC 2z IR R fE 25 the Group to achieve synergistic effect and economy of
I 6% 15 Y7 8 75 237,934,00078 7T ° scale of operations. Accordingly, the Group was willing to

pay a premium to acquire the equity interests in SMC and
resulted in a goodwill on acquisition of HK$37,934,000.
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36.

BY7.

WEEHEB AR — &

MUk B8 B EI A 2200743 A318 IF 5
- SMCR & £2007F3A31H IEF
AR S EE £ 2K199,660,00078
JC W ARFE 2 K B s T R E
83,440,000 7T °

fisl S BE 7R 2006F4 1B T - REE
2007F3A3 1AL FEZAEBE X5
52,442,290,000/8 T T F & 2 %
#495,311,000/8 7T ° 5 ERHERH
HAZ A —EAASEERER
2006FARH KRB ER 2 am k&
EXEEIRE  MIERKFELE ZTEA -

BERALEHB AT DM ELS
FAN - SMCE B 1T4H ££4,297,6190%
(20074 : 4,350,3810%) I p ¥ & T
HBUFE=F Al AEEFEA
ZEREERES SAEEESESR
ABHENBARBNER 2 KELH
279,000/ 7t (20074 : 10,194,000/
JC) M FE 1k P 2R {E496,00078 7T (2007
% 12,990,000/ 7T) ° &R A L E M
B R R & e 2 W as Th AR R ASMC
BEATREINR D AT 1& - 2N & B FE (HSMC
BEFBEZEENE -
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36.

37.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

SMC contributed HK$199,660,000 to the Group's
turnover and a loss of HK$3,440,000 to the Group’s profit
for the year ended 31 March 2007 between the date of
acquisition and 31 March 2007.

If acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2006, the
Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2007
would have been HK$2,442,290,000 and profit for that
year would have been HK$95,311,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessary an indicative revenue and results of operation
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2006, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year, SMC issued an aggregate of 4,297,619
shares (2007: 4,350,381 shares) to certain independent
third parties, accordingly, the shareholding held by the
Group was diluted and resulted in a gain on deemed
partial disposal amounting to HK$279,000 (2007:
HK$10,194,000), net of attributable goodwill of HK$6,000
(2007: HK$2,999,000). The gain on deemed partial
disposal was calculated as the difference between the
Group’s share of net assets in SMC, prior to and after
each additional issue of shares by SMC.
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38.

39.

HEHEB AT 38.

MR2006F 98 SMCHEERK B
A Allnternational SMC (HK) Limited
([1SMCJ) Z100%f% # - K {E £99,000
I o

ISMCRHE Rz B EFESIINT

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

In September 2006, SMC disposed of its 100% equity
interest in a subsidiary, International SMC (HK) Limited
("ISMC™), at a consideration of HK$99,000.

The net liabilities of ISMC at the date of disposal were as
follows:

F& T
HK$'000
FTH & B EFE Net liabilities disposed of:

ME -~ BEKREE Property, plant and equipment 216
FEWERR -~ e RIBFIE Debtors, deposits and prepayments 380
RITEF LIRS Bank balances and cash 577
FERER R X IEETE A Creditors and accrued charges (1,230)
FET R IE Taxation payable (19,064)
(19,121)
B R EE Goodwill released 19,121
o Bl e Gain on disposal 99
NBeREXN Satisfied by cash consideration 99

HERES 2HEERA OR) B8 Net cash inflow (outflow) arising on disposal:
ReRE Cash consideration 99
& ZRITHEERRS Bank balances and cash disposed of (577)
(478)

RAREE » ISMCH AN & B & 220074
SABIBEFECEERBAECREZF
ZEWPYTEK o

FTEFRERS 39.

#20019F9H * Cosmo Communications
Corporation([ Cosmo]) &R AR R 2 &
MEBAREECEERAFEE] -
% A1 BCosmot B 1T X 891.4% #E
=) —Z A 81,162,000 T(HHER
9,029,000/ 7T) 2 B K MCosmo7k &
R ¥ FE 15 BR 7%838,000k L(HHF R
6,511,000 JT) °

The impact of ISMC on the Group’s results and cash flows
in the year ended 31 March 2007 was insignificant.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

In September 2001, Cosmo Communications Corporation
("Cosmo"”) was indebted to Master Light Enterprise
Limited (“Master Light”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, which previously held a 91.4% interest in
the issued share capital of Cosmo, pursuant to a loan
in an aggregate amount of US$1,162,000 (equivalent
to HK$9,029,000) and Cosmo was indebted to Master
Light for trade payables in the amount of US$838,000
(equivalent to HK$6,511,000).
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39.

40.

ITEHESRE — & 39.  MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION — continued
20073 A 15H * Cosmo X & 1B A = On 15 March 2007, Cosmo and Master Light agreed that
BRERERNENERGELHE the outstanding balance of the loan and the trade payable
# ACosmoF I E0.055 T 2 E @AY to be converted into shares of Cosmo’s common stock at
BIEEZEHT K > CosmoE ME R K a par value US$0.05 per share as a full payment. Cosmo
ERERBREMEEEARAE - would be released from all its obligations and liabilities
with respect to the loan and the trade payable.
TERGEE IR - ANEE R CosmoZ FE(E AR Upon the completion of conversion, the equity interest
HEE H1.4%IENZE93.8% ° attributable to the Group in Cosmo increased from 91.4%
t0 93.8%.
MR2007F9H28H  SMCEL A AR & & On 28 September 2007, SMC and koncepts International
BB A A RSMCHE # 1% Ik X 7 8l & Limited (“koncepts”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
RAR QA (T8l ]) B E# &R ERR the Company and the immediate holding company of
300,000 JT (48 % 72,340,000/% 7T) SMC, agreed to convert a trade payable of US$300,000
M ASMCERMEENIEITLZ E B (equivalent to HK$2,340,000) into shares of SMC's
I 0 1E /& & 8T 5% - SMCE 5t JE 3 BR common stock at a par value US$0.01 per share as a full
HEREMEEERABE - payment. SMC would be released from all its obligations
and liabilities with respect to the trade payable.
R2008F3H18H * SMCK &l & [ On 18 March 2008, SMC and koncepts agreed to a trade
B A% BR 5K198,000E€ T (BBE R payable of US$198,000 (equivalent to HK$1,540,000) into
1,540,000/ 7T) ¥ # /SMCH R E @& shares of SMC's common stock at a par value US$0.01
0OIETLZEBROIERZHNTRK per share as a full payment. SMC would be released from
SMCERLENBRRBBREMEREER all its obligations and liabilities with respect to the trade
BE- payable.
8 R 40. COMMITMENTS
2008 2007
FTHER FAT
HK$'000 HK$’000
ERNEBERERE HBRE Contracted for but not provided
BiEz - in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of:
—WHEM % - BB MR — capital expenditure for acquisition
ZERER of property, plant and equipment 4,067 7,179
— B + 3 55 R 2 B AN HE — acquisition of land use rights = 46,134
4,067 53,313
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41.

REEORRE

EREEA

REER AEERBIAMBEZE
AEEMELLEEHEAR T BEXN

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

ZEIEESAENT ¢ operating leases in respect of rented premises as follows:
2008 2007
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1A Within one year 6,288 5,684
F2EESFNR In the second to fifth years inclusive 23,414 2,138
@5 F Over five years 871 1,000
30,573 8,822

REMONFTEAER 2 BRAE MK
FOEzRENES BHONKERR
BEMFEIFE mMESRELHA
EEEH °

EREHAEA
REER REASBEEBRERIT L
AT E A - T 51 HA R W ER

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its office and factory premises. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to nine years and
rentals are fixed over the lease terms.

As lessor
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the future minimum lease payments under

ZARRKEBRSHOT ¢ non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
2008 2007

FHERT THBTT

HK$’000 HK$'000

1A Within one year 7,891 2,428
FLEFESFNR In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,608 =
10,499 2,428

ZEYEr AFANARBMIFS2
R o

These properties have committed tenants for terms
ranging from one to two years.
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42.

43.

BEEEM

REER  AEEEMETEENER
FE-REERERECLCBREREP
OZER - ZFEEZREENT

42.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, the Group pledged certain
assets with the following carrying values to secure the
general credit facilities granted to the Group and the
margin accounts with securities brokers:

2008 2007
FHET F& T
HK$000 HK$'000
BEBRRERTHREER Bills discounted with recourse and
B RO IR R Y BR SR A B factored debtor balances 97,649 91,967
HEEEZKRE Investments held for trading 9,726 14,623
EEREATFEFABRZ Financial assets designated at fair value
TRLEE through profit or loss 6,795 17,760
BIERELERR « ke RFEN Deposits with securities brokers
PR 2R e as included in debtors, deposits
and prepayments 19,657 11,708
RAREE 43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

REE2007F3A31BILFE  A&EE
BAZSMCE—REBREEENR
/3 P {EHE &5 2 — ° 7200549 A -
Z2EBEHE (BESMCER) 2 EiR
R 275 AEAUEH L I8 /A 1 AR gk H
HHEZEHEERMEL ZEF - &
2005108 F REMEERZ[ S H
SRZ S ° fE20065F1 8 - AREH RS
WESHE WEAREZIEF B2
B RG  ASHEEFE - REH
BEERELEF - FR SMCZRER
WHRERTAH LF - MABFAD

= 44
Tv:,%n"

H EN2007FE3A831BHIEEE - A&
B J5— 5% K% 100,000% 7T (#HER
770,000 7T) SR A Z W EA - BB R
HERERNFIEE -
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SMC, which was acquired by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2007, is one of the defendants in a
lawsuit relating to copyright infringement. In September
2005, the defendants, including SMC, filed multiple
motions to dismiss the complaint from the publisher
owners of musical compositions. In October 2005, the
plaintiff filed a motion for summary judgment. In January
2006, the court granted the motions of the defendants
and denied the motion of the plaintiff, thereby dismissing
the case against the defendants with prejudice. The
plaintiff thereafter appealed the decision. During the year,
the claims against SMC were dismissed with prejudice and
the lawsuit was concluded.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group was
a defendant in a lawsuit in the amount of US$100,000
(equivalent to HK$770,000). The case was settled during
the year.
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44,

45,

R k48 A5 8
AEERBEAERAENRREEZESR
BRFETZRESTE - BB
B BEBUNASEZEE s
AEETEE - BRARERIKZH
BERAREMNKAEAEEZEES
FERARE L RERHZE N KE
R -

YERTEMBARZEE T EK
RMERZBEERARENFEZKE -
ZETENBARARIESATED
EREKBHNESHR AREHE
BR KR AE 8 2 EER RN RZE
BIFTARE HRBE AR R

BEALRS

(@ MRAEAFER AEEZTERR
RpmAEERAEBE 2 —TBIE
EHAHEERE ZRERE
& A ¥& R 5832 15,000,000/% 7T
(20074 : 15,000,0005 7T) °

ANEFEHERFEANTREE QR
B EKRERIE - R2008F3 31
B HAREKEESREKK
DR REGEEERABERARK
M 5E24 K25/ it

by FR XEEBRAEAQRAEFZ
BELTEZZEEREKBE
BAEEREB MM S H
B & b2 HiE B F (BRI
%) 1,376,000 7T (2007
£ : 2,200,000/ 7T) ©

(0 F2EEEBABZFHM

FA-TEEBEAE  AIHTE
B2 FFITEMNMEEY

44.

45.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme implemented
by the Hong Kong Government for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. The retirement benefit cost for
the MPF charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the fund
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, has
provided a personal guarantee to indemnify the
Group for any impairment of an unlisted available-
for-sale investment to the extent of HK$15 million
(2007: HK$15 million).

The Group maintained current accounts with
related parties and associates. Their balances as
at 31 March 2008 are set out in the consolidated
balance sheet with the terms disclosed in notes 24
and 25.

(b) During the year, the Group paid salaries and
other short term employee benefits, including
share-based payments, of HK$1,376,000 (2007:
HK$2,200,000) to certain close family members
of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a director of the
Company, as employees of the Group.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel
Details of the remuneration of key management

personnel, who are the executive directors, during
the year were set out in note 9.
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46. FEWEAAE

ARBZEEMBRBFEBNOT :

o B 3 =
fit, &%
Place of
incorporation

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

BRTEBR
BA/SMEAEE
Nominal value of
issued ordinary

REEEML
AR
Attributable

MEAREE or registration/ share capital/ equity interest ~ EEEH
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
HEBRAA & 28T 100%  100%  ®EER
ACME Delight Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
Cosmo Communications =GV IEDN 1,571,000% 7T 93.8% 91.4% EBREMEH
Corporation United States US$1,571,000 RIRE R
of America/ Trading in electrical
Canada appliances and
investment holding
GG Bt 10,000/ 7T 100%  100%  HELZK
Ever Solid Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Investment holding
Hyundai Household 5 28T 100% 100% ERERES
Improvement Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading in electrical
appliances
RAPEFARAF BB 25,000,0007%7C 100%  100%  REER
Korrigan Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 Investment holding
Limited
RAYERARAF BE 28T 100%  100% ERERES
Korrigan Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading in television sets
BEREXBRAT 0 2B 100%  100%  ®EER
Master Light Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
Limited
DHEFERAF] B 5,000,000/ 7T 96% 9%  NERE
Merrygain Holding Company Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Property investment
Limited
Newstar.com Limited EEHERARES EV 100%  100%  #EER
British Virgin UsS$1 Investment holding
Islands
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46.

TENBLAE - &

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — continued

A B M S BRTEER
it/ &%un®% REX/EMEFEE REBEMN
Place of Nominal value of RARE
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
MEARER or registration/ share capital/ equity interest ~ EEXH
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
Nice States Investment Limited BB 28T 100% 100%  %%EKRE
Hong Kong HK$2 Property investment
EXRERLAF B 28T 100%  100%  REZEREVFER
Niceday Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding and
property development
BREARLA B 28T 100%  100%  #%RKE
Noble Win Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property investment
AAERARAF RBARARES 1% 100%  100%  &&EER
Ram Light Management British Virgin Us$1 Investment holding
Limited Islands
Sheen United Technology RBARARES 1%7T 100%  100%  &&EER
Limited British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands
SIH Limited RBARARES 10,000/ 7T 100%  100%  &&EER
British Virgin HK$10,000 Investment holding
Islands
Skylight Technologies RBERRES 17T 100% 100%  REER
Limited British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Islands
The Singing Machine % 272,862 70 54.07% 47.19% HERHOKBEZEHEES
Company, Inc. # United States Us$272,862 Trading in consumer
of America karaoke audio
equipment
EREFTBRAT & 15,090,000/ 7T 100%  100% EBEfERES
Star Fair Electronics Hong Kong HK$15,090,000 Trading in electronic
Company Limited products
Star Fair Manufacturing ERES/H 12588 100% 100%  EFEM
Company Limited Jersey/PRC £12 SLERIHE

Manufacture and sale of
electronic products

Annual Report 2008 3% 123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANEIAL STATEMENTS
A A I 5 it B

For the year ended 31 March 2008 #Z200843 431 H [LF&E

46. i%[ﬁﬁ%i\\ﬂ — ,%E 46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — continued
MRS ERTEBR
i, /&% BRAN/GFREAEE REEEN
Place of Nominal value of MR A =

incorporation

issued ordinary

Attributable

() NGRS or registration/ share capital/ equity interest ~ EEEH
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
HRAEFARAR & 13,000,000 7T 100%  100% EFERESH
Star Light Electronics Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 Trading in electronic
Company Limited products
EXBRBERRA BB 28T 100%  100%  &&EER
Starleaf Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
Starlight eTech (Holdings) RBHARES 17T 100% 100%  REER
Limited British Virgin Us$1 Investment holding
Islands
TR RBRAR BB 2B 100%  100%  MEHRE
Starlight Exports Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property investment
FREEERAR Bt 73,920,192%7C 100%  100%  &EER
Starlight Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$73,920,192 Investment holding
Limited
Star Legend Offshore RBHRAREHS 17T 100% 100%  HELRRE
Limited British Virgin Us$1 Investment holding
Islands
Star Legend Technologies EEERARES 17T 100%  100%  #EER
Limited British Virgin Us$1 Investment holding
Islands
Starlight Manufacturers - il Yl 100,000587C 100%  100%  EFERBERHEE
Limited Jersey/PRC HK$100,000 Manufacture and sale of
electronic products
FRTSHRERAF B 2B 100%  100%  EFEmHEH
Starlight Marketing Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing in electronic
Development Limited products
RS EER LA B 28T 100% 100% RBHEENEFEmM
Starlight Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 25
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Securities trading and
trading in electronic
products
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46.

TENBLAE - &

A B M S
it &%
Place of
incorporation

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES — continued

ERTERR
B/ EMEAEE
Nominal value of
issued ordinary

REEEN
RAER
Attributable

MEAREE or registration/ share capital/ equity interest ~ EEEH
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007
THE T35 1 R PR ) 100,000 7T 100%  100% EBEfEREH
BERBAERAE Macau HK$100,000 Trading in electronic
Starlight Marketing Macao products
Commercial Offshore Limited
Starlight Overseas Marketing 5 Bk £ HE 17T 100%  100% SBTERES
Limited Republic of Us$1 Trading in electronic
Mauritius products
TR ER L) 0 10,0007 7T 100%  100%  #IRRER
Starlight R&D Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 RETRERS
Material sourcing and
provision of engineering
services
HRFEERAT & 4% 100%  100%  AREEARREHELE
Starlight Video Limited Hong Kong HK$4 RBERGEERE S
Provision of nominee
services for group
companies and trading
of DVD products
Starlite Consumer Electronics HEHS 25T 100% 100% EFERES
(USA) Inc. Cayman Islands HK$2 Trading in electronic
products
Starlite Consumer Electronics e 20T 100% = EFERES
(USA) Inc. United States Us$20 Trading in electronic
of America products
Starshow Investment Limited & 2B 100%  100%  AREERRREECERS
Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of nominee
services for group
companies
EHEXERAA & 4,000,000/ 7T 80% 80% PRERBERHE
Success Base Industries Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
Limited plastic products
Top Spring Technology RBHARHS B 100% 100%  HERE
Limited British Virgin Uss$1 Investment holding
Islands
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46.

TENBLA — &

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

B BRTEER
i/ &% RE/AMEREE REEERS
Place of Nominal value of RARER
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
HEARER or registration/ share capital/ equity interest ~ FEEH
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2008 2007

BMEESFHIERRAR e * 33,300,000/ 7T 100%  100%  BYERLERHE
Starfair Manufacturing PRC* HK$33,300,000 Manufacture and sale of

(Panyu) Company Limited electronic products
AR EFERAF B 60,000,000/ 7T 100%  100%  BIERRERHEE
Shenzhen Starlight PRC* HK$60,000,000 Manufacture and sale of

Electronics Co. Ltd. electronic products
HBEREERMERRLD HE*  ARM¥31,750,0007T 100%  100%  ¥EEE

PRC* RMB31,750,000 Property development

HRESEBAREBRAA R 20,000,000/ 7T 100% 80% PRBEMBEREE
Panyu Success Base Plastic PRC* HK$20,000,000 Manufacture and sale of

Company Limited plastic products
HBREEERMERRA g+ 21,500,000/7C 100%  100% EfERNERHEE
Panyu Starfair Electromcs PRC* HK$21,500,000 Manufacture and sale of

Manufacturing Company Limited electronic products
4 WEBARBATRHEINERE- < The subsidiaries are PRC wholly foreign owned

enterprises.

# R A& B Al 15 JRSMCE % /550% # The Group is able to exercise control over SMC since

LA EpK S - B It AT $SMCHT 5 42
o mMANERAMCZ BE—F AR
ootk o - 2007838318 0 B
TESMCETTFAER 2 RABRESE
% AREBRSMCZ BHEZZME
53.27% ° A it © SMCH#E 5l {E AN &£ F
Z B A a

EERRALERFAINARD Tﬁﬁ;"‘_
HEAEEZEEBEENTE 5
1§}i$%l§§@%§£§*ﬁ é%

RBMREEEMKEB AR ZFS
H—} BREBNR TR o

BRSIH Limited ¥ Star Legend Offshore
Limited BN 2RI BEEFEIN  FTBEH
B AREARNARBMERE - R
ANERFAFERNEMER - HEN
BARAEFAAREZEEER -
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over 50% of the board of directors are nominated by the
Group and the Group is the single largest shareholder of
SMC. In addition, as at 31 March 2007, upon exercise of
warrants issued by SMC to the Group, the Group’s equity
interest in SMC will increase to 53.27%. Accordingly, it is
classified as a subsidiary of the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results of the year or constitute a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Other than SIH Limited and Star Legend Offshore Limited
which are held directly by the Company, all other
subsidiaries are held indirectly by the Company. None of
the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T4 B % B

HE3IA3MBALEE
Year ended 31 March

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
TExr  FTEx  FTExr  TEr  TER
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EF RESULTS
S Turnover 1,785,247 1,630,741 1,782,771 2,434,241 2,199,033
B A5 Al A Profit before taxation 101,603 56,768 90,691 119,906 64,025
FRIE Taxation (720) (5,694) (11,452) (9,715)  (18,531)
REE R A Profit for the year 100,883 51,074 79,239 110,191 45,494
A AT LR : Attributable to:
VNN ) Shareholders of the
Company 100,065 50,526 79,141 105,196 45,914
DH R R R Minority interests 818 548 98 4,995 (420)
100,883 51,074 79,239 110,191 45,494
M3A31H
At 31 March
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
T TT THET T THIT THxT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEHEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERE Total assets 1,023,051 975,841 1,219,487 1,432,998 1,474,310
BERRE Total liabilities 352,718 292,474 490,793 620,648 674,534
670,333 683,367 728,694 812,350 799,776
RAAIRERELER Equity attributable to
shareholders of
the Company 668,968 681,814 727,177 797,117 781,739
B ARZ Share option reserve of
B ERE a listed subsidiary = = = 66 253
VBT R AE Minority interests 1,365 1,553 1,517 15,167 17,784

670,333 683,367 728,694 812,350 799,776
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

LEWEME

rEH
EHEEE FE (8 2=
EWHRSEE 2REME (FAR) e e Attributable
Investment properties Gross floor Nature interest M » 58
held for rental purposes area (sq. ft.) of property to the Group Category of lease

BBRERSEEA 18 2,280 EES 100% REHHED
BREBAE13#8 - C - D Commercial Long leases
Units B, C and D on

13th Floor of

Guangdong Tours Centre

No. 18 Pennington Street

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BEPIRGEBISH 5,543 [ 100% RFEHELD
F—HL261EA Commercial Long leases
Unit A, 26th Floor

United Centre

No. 95 Queensway, Central

Hong Kong

ERBBFEBHIANE232H 12,079 I% 100% REHED
WETEKNE 181 Industrial Long leases
18th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

BERBEFEBHIANE232H 13,974 I% 100% RFEHED
HETERE148 Industrial Long leases
14th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

BB EFEBHIANE232H 13,974 I% 96% RFEHED
AT ERNE121E Industrial Long leases
12th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

=R A E 1L K855 63,968 [ 100% RFHELD
221 % 361 R Commercial Long leases
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